
Public Accounts Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 4 - Ty Hywel 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
4 February 2014  

 

Meeting time: 
09:00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Fay Buckle 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8041 
Publicaccounts.comm@Wales.gov.uk  
 

 

Agenda 
 

 

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions (09:00)  

2 Hospital Catering and Patient Nutrition: Evidence from the Welsh 
Government (09:00-10:00) (Pages 1 - 3)  
PAC(4)-04-14 (paper 1) 
 
Professor Jean White – Chief Nursing Officer, Welsh Government  

3 Caldicot and Wentlooge Levels Internal Drainage Board: Wales 
Audit Office response to report recommendations (10:00-10:20) 
(Pages 4 - 7)  
PAC(4)-04-14 (paper 2) 
 
Wales Audit Office Report: Improving Financial Management and Governance: issues 
from the Audit of Community Council Accounts 2011-12 (September 2013)  

4 Papers to note (10:20) (Pages 8 - 9) 

 
Health Finances 2012-13 and Beyond: Letter from the Auditor General for Wales 
(27 January 2014)  (Pages 10 - 11) 
 

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 
public from the meeting for the following business: (10:20)   
Items 6, 7 & 8  

Public Document Pack



6 Hospital Catering and Patient Nutrition: Consideration of evidence 
(10:20-10:25)  

7 Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services: Briefing from the 
Wales Audit Office (10:25-10:40)  

8 Consultation on a new code of audit practice and statement of 
practice (10:40-11:00) (Pages 12 - 37)  
PAC(4)-04-14 (paper 3) 
  



 

Yr Adran Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
Department for Health and Social Services 
Prif Swyddog Nyrsio – Cyfarwyddwr Nyrs GIG Cymru 
Chief Nursing Officer – Nurse Director NHS Wales 
 
 

 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel :  029 2082 3469 
Ffacs/Fax:  029 2082 5116 

Jean.white@wales.gsi.gov.uk 
Gwefan ● website: www.wales.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
Darren Millar AM 
Chair Public Accounts Committee 
National Assembly Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 
  

Our ref:   JW/   
 

1 November 2013 
 
Dear Mr Millar 
 
 
Hospital Catering and Patient Nutrition 
 
Further to your letter of the 11 October 2013 requesting additional information on 
Hospital Catering and Patient Nutrition, I am writing to provide Committee members with 
specific responses to the issues they have raised, as follows: 
 
 
Why has the Betsi Cadwaladr system for accessing the nutrition e-learning 
package, without the need for an email account, not been adopted by other Health 
Boards? 
 
I wrote to Nurse Directors at the beginning of June to remind them of my expectation 
that the Nutrition Care Pathway and the Food Record Charts are used as mainstream 
practice, with the e-learning package as its training resource. I informed them about the 
Betsi Cadwaladr University Local Health Board system for accessing the All Wales 
Food Record Chart e-learning tool and encouraged them to get their lead on e-learning 
to do likewise. It is my understanding that the lead in Betsi Cadwaladr Health Board has 
had contact with some other Health Boards to describe her approach. 
 
 
Participation in on-line training packages in the NHS. 
 
I recognise that the low level of compliance with completion of the e-learning nutrition 
package remains an issue and this continues to be a priority. NHS Wales Informatics 
Service (NWIS) and the Health Boards are considering further options for improving the 
completion rates. NWIS has been commissioned to produce a status report from each 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Health Board, which will give us the opportunity to consider if an all-Wales solution 
would be appropriate. 
 
Officials are also exploring alternative mechanisms with the company that developed 
the e-learning package. I will provide you with a further update in the New Year. 
 
 
Destination of Food Waste including details of the waste contracts between 
health boards and local authorities. 
 
A number of Health Boards are making arrangements with local authorities for the 
separate collection of food waste. For example, Cardiff and Vale University Health 
Board work in partnership with the City of Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan County 
Councils for the separate collection and disposal of food waste. All community hospitals 
within Hywel Dda Local Health Board also have food waste collections by their 
respective local authorities. The NHS would like to work more closely with local 
authorities to improve food waste collections and closer collaboration should be 
encouraged. However, some local authorities are reluctant to collect food waste from 
large hospital sites. 
 
More environmentally friendly forms of hospital food waste disposal are being 
considered. This could include the use of new technologies which will have to be 
evaluated to ensure they comply with statutory requirements. To date there has been no 
cost benefit analysis undertaken to assess the benefits of introducing more 
environmentally friendly forms of hospital waste disposal. This would be undertaken in 
respect of any new proposal. 
 
From a nursing perspective the reasons for plate waste should be recorded on a 
patient’s notes or food chart as their nutritional status is extremely important in their 
care and treatment. This information on their food and fluid intake would influence the 
plan of nursing care for the patient. There are no plans to collate consumption/waste on 
a meal by meal basis at ward level. 
 
The Welsh Government is working with NHS Shared Services Partnership – Facilities 
Services (NWSSP-FS) through the EFPMS (Estates and Facilities Performance 
Management System) process to introduce new methods of measuring food waste to 
include plate waste other than just the untouched meals. The proposal would be to carry 
out a pilot study in one of the large acute hospitals and, if successful, to discuss the 
outcome with all other Health Boards/Trusts and to roll it out across NHS Wales. 
 
Colleagues in NWSSP-FS have met WRAP Cymru to discuss food waste. As this is a 
local issue, where the individual Health Boards and Trust manage their own activities, it 
was felt the best way for WRAP to potentially help was to provide them with the contact 
details of the facilities/catering managers at each NHS organisation. WRAP Cymru have 
also been invited to give a presentation to the Welsh Health Environment Forum 
(WHEF) Waste Managers meeting in the New Year.      
 
 
Food Hygiene Rating Stickers 
 
When the statutory Food Hygiene Rating Wales scheme commences on 28 November, 
Health Boards will need to agree with their local authority food hygiene inspector where 
best to display their hygiene stickers at their hospitals.   Page 2



 
Welsh Government officials are meeting Health Board Catering Managers to discuss 
the location for display of food hygiene rating stickers in hospitals and also food hygiene 
issues in hospitals more generally.  We hope to be in a position to update you on 
developments in the New Year. 
 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Professor Jean White 
Chief Nursing Officer 
Nurse Director NHS Wales 

Page 3



 

Darren Millar  

Chair of Public Accounts Committee  

darren.millar@wales.gov.uk  

 

Sent via email only  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Dear Darren  
 
Audit of small bodies 

 
In October 2012 as the Appointed Auditor for Caldicot and Wentlooge Levels Internal 
Drainage Board (IDB), I issued a report in the public interest on various aspects of the 
IDB’s activities. In the report, I recognised that ‘the number of issues identified within the 
current audit and the scale and significance of some of these issues raises legitimate 
questions regarding the effectiveness of previous audits.’ I went on to explain that I was 
considering ‘what improvements needed to be made to our methodology for the audit of 
small public bodies and for staff training to ensure that key audit issues are identified and 
reported on as early as possible.’ 
 
In its subsequent report on the IDB, the Committee stated that:  
 
‘We are disappointed that the Wales Audit Office failed to address issues at Caldicot and 
Wentlooge Levels Internal Drainage Board earlier. However, we note that the Wales Audit 
Office has recognised these failings and has committed to reviewing its auditing 
methodology to better ensure that key audit issues are reported and addressed as soon 
as possible.  
 
The report recommend that the ‘Wales Audit Office appear before the Public Accounts 
Committee with the results of the review of its auditing methodology and proposals on 
how it intends to make improvements in the future.’ 
 
I anticipate that I will appear before the committee on 4 February 2014 to provide an 
update regarding our response to the recommendation in the report about changes to our 
audit approach. 
 

Reference AJB714/bd  

Date 27 January 2014 

Pages 1 of 4 

Agenda Item 3

Page 4



 

Our reference: AJB714/bd Page 2 of 4 

 

The aim of this letter is to brief the committee, in advance of my scheduled evidence 
session, on the work we have undertaken to review and develop aspects of our approach 
to financial audit work, in particular those that are relevant to smaller audits.  
 
 
Better recognition of the risks related to small audits  
 
In light of the relatively small amount of public money spent by small bodies, we have 
historically regarded such bodies as being of lower risk. This may not, however, always 
be the case. We have therefore:  
 

· revisited our arrangements for staffing the audits of smaller entities to ensure that 
more experienced staff are utilised where appropriate;  

· undertaken a review of the audit approach in a sample of small audits. Our  2013 
annual round of mandatory auditor training  stressed the issues identified in our 
review of small audits, including recognition of and responding appropriately to 
specific risks;   

· held a ‘raising our game in financial audit’ seminar with Engagement Leads and 
Audit Managers in November 2013. This drew on the findings from our internal 
quality reviews of audits with the aim of identifying areas where we can improve 
the quality of audit work and the actions required to achieve these improvements; 
and 

· reviewed and enhanced our quality control review policy, to ensure that in future at 
least one smaller audit is subject to review each year. We have also revised our 
method of scoring audit quality, so we can better identify audits where 
improvements are required. 

 
External reviews of audit quality   
 
As part of our commitment to improving the quality of our audit work, over the past year 
we commissioned two external reviews of our quality arrangements: 
 

· In February 2013 a senior officer of the Audit Commission undertook a review of 
our overall quality framework, and we are now implementing his 
recommendations. 

 

· We have also appointed the Quality Assurance Directorate of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of England and Wales on a 3 year contract to undertake 
independent reviews of our financial audit work (in the same way as they 
undertake reviews of audit firms undertaking Companies Act audits). They 
undertook their review of our overall arrangements in September 2013, and in 
early 2014 they will undertake their first reviews of individual audits.   

 
Accreditation of financial audit staff  
 
A further development designed to improve the quality of audit work will be the 
introduction, from 2014, of an accreditation scheme for all financial audit staff. This will 

Page 5



 

Our reference: AJB714/bd Page 3 of 4 

 

provide enhanced assurance that staff have the technical skills required to undertake the 
financial audit of public sector entities. 
 
In order to obtain and retain accreditation to undertake financial audit work, staff will be 
required to: 
 

· undertake a minimum amount of relevant audit work each year; 

· attend specific mandatory training courses; and 

· provide evidence of compliance with their professional body’s Continuing 
Professional Development scheme.    

 
New Code of Audit Practice 
 
Most of the issues identified in the public interest report related to the governance of the 
IDB. 
 
The extant version of the Auditor General’s Code of Audit Practice does not specifically 
identify considerations of governance issues as a responsibility of auditors (with the 
exception of limited work regarding the Annual Governance Statement). However and 
specifically in order to clarify the role of auditors regarding governance issues, the draft 
revised Code (on which we are currently consulting) states that ‘auditors will provide 
assurance on the effectiveness of governance arrangements and, where appropriate, on 
other issues of public interest.’ This is likely to include overviews of governance 
arrangements across all organisations supplemented by specific risk based themes and 
probes designed to provide a deeper level of assurance on particular aspects of the 
governance.  
 
Revised fee model 
 
In my evidence to the Public Accounts Committee, I noted that our audit work on the IDB 
had been constrained ‘because it is a small body, and, if you are going to add more time 
to the audit, it is going to cost even more.’ 
 
The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2013 introduces a slightly revised fee-setting basis for all our 
audit work. The Wales Audit Office ‘may not exceed the full cost of exercising the function 
to which the fee relates’. Full costs include direct costs such as salary, employer pension 
and national insurance contributions, alongside an appropriate proportion of 
organisational overheads. In response to these provisions, we have revised our cost 
allocation methodology to ensure we comply with the requirements when exercising each 
audit or inspection activity at each audited body for each year of audit, including for small 
bodies. The necessary revisions to our cost allocation methodology, coupled with 
changes made following a review of our zero-based approach to audit planning, will 
ensure that fees are sufficient to allow audit work at small bodies to be undertaken to an 
appropriate standard. 
 
I trust that this reassures the Committee that we have taken the issues seriously and 
learned from them. I remain committed, both professionally and personally, to enhancing 

Page 6



 

Our reference: AJB714/bd Page 4 of 4 

 

the quality of our audit work. We will not be complacent and will strive to always deliver 
the very highest standards of audit work for the people of Wales. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Anthony Barrett 
Assistant Auditor General  

 

 

 

Page 7



 

Public Accounts Committee 

 

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 4 
 

 

  
Meeting date:  Tuesday, 28 January 2014 

 

  
Meeting time:  09:00 - 10:19 

 

  This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: 

http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=en_500000_28_01_2014&t=0&l=en 

 

 

 

Concise Minutes: 

 

   
Assembly Members:  Darren Millar (Chair) 

Mohammad Asghar (Oscar) 

Mike Hedges 

Alun Ffred Jones 

Julie Morgan 

Jenny Rathbone 

Aled Roberts 

Sandy Mewies 

 

  

   
Witnesses:  Huw Vaughan Thomas, Auditor General for Wales, Wales 

Audit Office 

   

   
Committee Staff:  Meriel Singleton (Second Clerk) 

Claire Griffiths (Deputy Clerk) 

Joanest Jackson (Legal Advisor) 

 

  

 

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions  
1.1 The Chair welcomed the Members to Committee and welcomed Alun Ffred Jones 
following his election to the Committee on 21 January. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 8



2 Papers to note  
2.1 The papers were noted. 

 

2.1 Health Finances 2012-13 and Beyond: Letter from the Auditor General for Wales 

(14 January 2014)  

 

2.2 Unscheduled Care: Letter from David Sissling (14 January 2014)  

 

2.3 Unscheduled Care: Information from Hywel Dda Community Health Council  

 

2.4 Unscheduled Care: Letter from Hywel Dda University Health Board (22 January 

2014)  

 

3 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public 

from the meeting for the following business:  
3.1 The motion was agreed. 

 

4 Higher Education Funding: Briefing from the Wales Audit Office  
4.1 The Committee recived a briefing from the Wales Audit Office on the Higher 
Education Finances report which was published on 21 November 2013. 
 
4.2 The Committee agreed to write to the Welsh Government seeking a response to the 
WAO report. It also agreed to return to this issue once further work is completed later 
this year. 

 

5 Health Finances 2012-13 and Beyond: Consideration of report  
5.1 The Committee considered the draft report. A number of minor amendments were 
suggested and it was agreed that the redraft would be circulated for agreement out of 
Committee. 

 

Page 9



 

Direct Line:  029 2032 0510  E-mail:  huw.vaughan.thomas@wao.gov.uk 

Mr Darren Millar AM 
Chair of the Public Accounts Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff  CF99 1NA 
 

 Date: 27 January 2014 
 Our ref: HVT/2061/fgb 
 Page: 1 of 2 

 

Dear Darren 

At the meeting of the Public Accounts Committee on 16 January you considered the 
exchange of correspondence I had with the Permanent Secretary on the presentation of 
the Welsh Government’s spending plans for health.  The Committee requested a note 
setting out how the other parts of the UK present changes to budgets from one year to 
the next.  We have examined practice in the other parts of the UK and offer the following 
observations.  I should add that, in order to respond quickly to the Committee’s request, 
we have not sought to confirm these observations with the relevant governments. 

Firstly, the Northern Ireland Executive does not produce an annual draft budget 
comparable to that of the Welsh Government.  It has set a budget for 2011 to 2015.  
Changes to spending plans are managed through quarterly monitoring and in-year 
estimates to manage over and underspends.  A more detail explanation can be found at 
http://www.dfpni.gov.uk/main-estimates.  We have therefore focused in more detail on 
the UK Government and Scottish Government. 

We looked at the UK Government presentation in the Budget 2013 (March 2013).  The 
UK Government uses the estimated outturn for 2012-13 as a baseline.  The use of 
estimated outturn is likely to produce a more accurate picture of year-on-year changes.  
However, the UK Budget is set in March – close to the end of the financial year – when 
Departments will have a good idea of their likely outturn.  The draft budget in Wales is 
published in October, when the final outturn would be considerably less certain. 

The Scottish Government’s draft budget for 2014-15 compares year-on-year changes 
using the draft budget figures from the previous year, updated to reflect changes agreed 
in the 2013 Budget Act (the Act setting out the spending plans for 2013-14).  This 
baseline is equivalent to the Final Budget in Wales.  The Scottish Government also 
provides a longer term comparison by including outturn data going back to 2008-09. 

Agenda Item 4a

Page 10



 Date: 27 January 2014 
 Our ref: HVT/  /fgb 
 Page: 2 of 2 

 

In summary, the UK Government’s approach of using estimated outturn as a baseline 
could produce the most accurate picture of year-on-year changes.  However, the use of 
outturn estimates would be more difficult in Wales, due to timing.  The Scottish approach 
is to use the equivalent of the Final Budget in Wales as a baseline.  By using the 
Supplementary Budget, the draft budget in Wales provides a more up-to-date baseline 
for year-on-year comparison than is the case in Scotland.   

Yours sincerely 

 
HUW VAUGHAN THOMAS 
AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES 

Page 11



Consultation Document

Part 1: Draft Code of Audit Practice of the Auditor General for Wales

Part 2: Draft Statement of Practice of the Auditor General for Wales for local government 

improvement audit, assessment and special inspection functions

November 2013

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 12



Overview

This consultation invites views and comments on two separate but related 

documents:

!" #"$%#&'"()$*")&"+,$-'".%#/'-/*")&"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"&)%"4#3*56"#2$

!" #"$%#&'"7'#'*8*2'")&".%#/'-/*"90-/0"$*5/%-:*5"0)9"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"-2'*2$5"

to exercise local government improvement audit, assessment and inspection 

functions.

;)33)9-2<"/)25,3'#'-)2="#">2#3"?*%5-)2")&"'0*"()$*"9-33":*"-55,*$"#2$"@,:3-50*$":A"

'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3B"+">2#3"?*%5-)2")&"'0*"7'#'*8*2'"9-33":*"@%*@#%*$"#2$"@%)?-$*$"

to the Welsh Ministers for their approval, before being published.

How to respond

.3*#5*"%*5@)2$":A"CD"E#2,#%A"FGDHB"

Response forms can be sent to the following address:

Code and statement consultation

4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*

FH"(#'0*$%#3"J)#$

Cardiff

(;DD"KLE

I%"/)8@3*'*$"*3*/'%)2-/#33A"#2$"5*2'":A"*M8#-3"')"info@wao.gov.uk

N&"A),"%*O,-%*"'0-5"@,:3-/#'-)2"-2"#2"#3'*%2#'-?*"&)%8#'"#2$P)%"3#2<,#<*"@3*#5*"

/)2'#/'",5",5-2<"'0*"$*'#-35"@%)?-$*$"#:)?*")%":A"'*3*@0)2*")2"GFK"FGCF"GQGGB

!"#$%&'(%)*+),+-./0)*/./+1+&)*23.*(%'$%(4+'*3+3'('+

protection

N2&)%8#'-)2"@%)?-$*$"-2"%*5@)25*"')"'0-5"/)25,3'#'-)2"8#A":*"@,:3-50*$")%"$-5/3)5*$"

-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"'0*"#//*55"')"-2&)%8#'-)2"%*<-8*5"R/0-*SA"'0*";%**$)8")&"

Information Act 2000, but also the Data Protection Act 1998 and the Environmental 

N2&)%8#'-)2"J*<,3#'-)25"FGGHTB

N&"A),"9#2'"#2A"-2&)%8#'-)2"A),"@%)?-$*"')":*"'%*#'*$"#5"/)2>$*2'-#3="-'"9),3$":*"

0*3@&,3"-&"A),"/),3$"*U@3#-2"')",5"90A"A),"%*<#%$"'0*"-2&)%8#'-)2"A),"0#?*"@%)?-$*$"

#5"/)2>$*2'-#3B

N&"9*"%*/*-?*"#"%*O,*5'"&)%"$-5/3)5,%*")&"'0*"-2&)%8#'-)2"9*"9-33"'#V*"&,33"#//),2'"

)&"A),%"*U@3#2#'-)2=":,'"9*"/#22)'"<-?*"#2A"#55,%#2/*"'0#'"/)2>$*2'-#3-'A"/#2":*"

8#-2'#-2*$"-2"#33"/-%/,85'#2/*5B"+2"#,')8#'-/"/)2>$*2'-#3-'A"$-5/3#-8*%"<*2*%#'*$"

:A"A),%"NW"5A5'*8"9-33"2)'=")&"-'5*3&=":*"%*<#%$*$"#5":-2$-2<")2"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3B

Personal data will be processed in accordance with the Data Protection Act. Where 

5,/0"$#'#"&#335"9-'0-2"'0*"5/)@*")&"#"%*O,*5'"&)%"-2&)%8#'-)2"&%)8"#2)'0*%"@*%5)2="

the provisions of the 1998 and 2000 Acts will need to be considered in the particular 

/-%/,85'#2/*5B"40-3*"2)"5-',#'-)2"/#2":*"@%*X,$<*$="'0-5"-5"3-V*3A"')"8*#2"'0#'"

-2&)%8#'-)2"/)2/*%2-2<"5*2-)%")&>/-#35"#2$"@,:3-/"><,%*5"-5"3-V*3A"')":*"$-5/3)5*$"

90-3*"'0*"2#8*5"#2$"#$$%*55*5")&")%$-2#%A"8*8:*%5")&"'0*"@,:3-/"#%*"3-V*3A"')":*"

withheld.

© Auditor General for Wales 2013

P
age 13



N2"%*5@)25*"')"2*9"3*<#3"%*O,-%*8*2'5="#2$"'#V-2<"#//),2'")&"'0*"5'%#'*<-/"@%-)%-'-*5"&)%"),%"#@@%)#/0"')"

@,:3-/"#,$-'"&)%"'0*"2*U'"'0%**"A*#%5="N"@%)@)5*"')"*20#2/*"#2$"*U'*2$"'0*",2$*%3A-2<"5*'")&"@%-2/-@3*5"&)%"

'0)5*"/#%%A-2<"),'"9)%V")2"8A":*0#3&B

YA"@%)@)5#35"#%*"3#-$"),'"-2"'9)"$)/,8*2'5="90-/0"N"0#?*":%),<0'"')<*'0*%"&)%"'0*"@,%@)5*5")&"'0-5"

consultation:

!" #"$%#&'"()$*")&"+,$-'".%#/'-/*"'0#'"@%*5/%-:*5"'0*"9#A"-2"90-/0"8A"#,$-'"#2$"/*%'#-2")'0*%"&,2/'-)25"#%*"

')":*"/#%%-*$"),'6"#2$

!" #"$%#&'"7'#'*8*2'")&".%#/'-/*"'0#'"$*5/%-:*5"'0*"9#A"-2"90-/0"8A"3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'"-8@%)?*8*2'"#,$-'"

and assessment functions must be exercised.

Z)'0"$)/,8*2'5"#%*"$*5-<2*$"')"/)8@3*8*2'"N2'*%2#'-)2#3"7'#2$#%$5")2"+,$-'-2<"#2$":)'0"*8:)$A"90#'"

appears to me to be best professional practice. 

N">%83A":*3-*?*"'0#'"'0*"%*?-5*$"5*'")&"@%-2/-@3*5"@%)@)5*$"-2"'0-5"/)25,3'#'-)2"9-33"#33)9",5"')"8#U-8-5*"'0*"

/)2'%-:,'-)2"#,$-')%5"/#2"8#V*"')"$*8)/%#'-/"#//),2'#:-3-'A6"0*3@-2<"'0*"@*)@3*")&"4#3*5"V2)9"90*'0*%"

@,:3-/"8)2*A"-5":*-2<"8#2#<*$"9-5*3A="#2$"@,:3-/":)$-*5"-2"4#3*5",2$*%5'#2$"0)9"')"-8@%)?*"),'/)8*5B

N"3))V"&)%9#%$"')"%*/*-?-2<"A),%"?-*95")2"8A"@%)@)5#35B

Huw Vaughan Thomas

Auditor General for Wales 

5)-.6)-3+#4+(7.+8"3%()-+9.*.-'$

P
age 14



!'-(+:;+<)3.+),+8"3%(+!-'&(%&.

W0-5"()$*"@%*5/%-:*5"0)9"#,$-')%5"8,5'"/#%%A"),'"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"&)%"4#3*5["#,$-'"#2$" " \

certain other functions          

W0*"@,%@)5*")&"@,:3-/"5*/')%"#,$-'"-5"')"%*@)%'")2"'0*"5'*9#%$50-@")&"@,:3-/"8)2*A"#2$"-2"'0*"" " ]

process provide insight and promote improvement        

;-?*"@%-2/-@3*5",2$*%@-2"'0*"#,$-'"9)%V")&"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"^":*-2<"@,:3-/"&)/,5*$="" " " _

independent, proportionate, accountable and sustainable       

W0*"1*2*%#3"()$*"^"'0-5"@%*5/%-:*5"'0*"9#A"#,$-')%5"8,5'"/#%%A"),'"'0*-%"&,2/'-)25" " " K

W0*"7@*/->/"()$*"^"'0-5"&,%'0*%"@%*5/%-:*5"'0*"9#A"#,$-')%5"8,5'"/#%%A"),'"@#%'-/,3#%"&,2/'-)25=""" DC

#5"@#%'")&"#"/)M)%$-2#'*$"#@@%)#/0"')"#,$-'"9)%V" " " " " " " "

7/0*$,3*"D`"(*%'#-2")'0*%"&,2/'-)25" " " " " " " " " " D]

Schedule 2: The audit of small bodies         21

Annex: The application of this Code and its scope in terms of functions     22

Part 2: Statement of Practice

W0-5"7'#'*8*2'"$*5/%-:*5"0)9"#,$-')%5"8,5'"*U*%/-5*"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"&)%"4#3*5["3)/#3" " FQ

government improvement audit, assessment and special inspection functions   

+,$-')%5"8,5'"/#%%A"),'"3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'"-8@%)?*8*2'"#,$-'="#55*558*2'"#2$"5@*/-#3"-25@*/'-)2"" F\

9)%V"-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"'0*"@%-2/-@3*5"#2$"<*2*%#3"#@@%)#/0"@%*5/%-:*$"-2"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"

Code of Audit Practice           

Contents

P
age 15



QConsultation document

!'-(+:;+<)3.+),+8"3%(+!-'&(%&.

P
age 16



Consultation document\

=7%/+<)3.+0-./&-%#./+7)6+'"3%()-/+>"/(+&'--4+)"(+(7.+8"3%()-+9.*.-'$+,)-+

?'$./@+'"3%(+'*3+&.-('%*+)(7.-+,"*&(%)*/

D" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"-5"'0*"5'#',')%A"*U'*%2#3"

auditor of most of the Welsh public sector. The 

.,:3-/"+,$-'"R4#3*5T"+/'5"FGGH"#2$"FGDC="'0*"

1)?*%28*2'")&"4#3*5"+/'5"DKK_"#2$"FGG\="

alongside a range of other legislation, provide the 

5'#',')%A":#5-5"&)%"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"')"/#%%A"),'"

0-5")%"0*%"9)%VB

F" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"-5"#35)"'0*"+//),2'-2<"I&>/*%"

&)%"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*="90-/0"*8@3)A5"5'#&&"

and procures other resources that enable the 

+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"')"/#%%A"),'"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"

functions.

C" W0*".,:3-/"+,$-'"R4#3*5T"+/'"FGDC"@%)?-$*5"'0#'"

the Auditor General must issue a code of audit 

@%#/'-/*="90-/0"@%*5/%-:*5"'0*"9#A"-2"90-/0"'0*"

+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"#,$-'"&,2/'-)25"R#3)2<5-$*"

/*%'#-2")'0*%"&,2/'-)25T"#%*"')":*"/#%%-*$"),'="#2$"

embodies what appears to the Auditor General 

to be best professional practice. This Code of 

+,$-'".%#/'-/*"R'0-5"()$*T"&,3>35"'0#'"@,%@)5*"#2$"

replaces the Code that was in effect from 1 April 

FGDG",2$*%"'0*".,:3-/"+,$-'"R4#3*5T"+/'"FGGHB"

H" N2"@#%'-/,3#%="'0-5"()$*"-5"$*5-<2*$"')"/)8@3*8*2'"

International Standards on Auditing and 

recognised standards and guidance that are 

regarded as best professional practice, such as 

'0#'"-55,*$":A"'0*";-2#2/-#3"J*@)%'-2<"(),2/-3"#2$"

:A"@%)&*55-)2#3":)$-*5B

Q" W0*"&,2/'-)25"')"90-/0"'0-5"()$*"%*3#'*5"8#A"

:*"/#%%-*$"),'":A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3")%"8#A":*"

delegated to others1B"()25*O,*2'3A="-2"'0-5"()$*"

'0*"'*%85"a#,$-')%["#2$"a#,$-')%5["#@@3A"/)33*/'-?*3A"

to:

#" '0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#36

:" *8@3)A**5")&"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*6"#2$

/" #2A"@*%5)2"90)"@%)?-$*5"#,$-'"5*%?-/*5"')"'0*"

"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*B

\" 7/0*$,3*"D")&"'0-5"()$*"@%*5/%-:*5"'0*"9#A"

in which certain other functions of the Auditor 

General are to be carried out. Some of these 

&,2/'-)25"#%*"-2/3,$*$"#5"5@*/->*$":A"'0*"FGDC"

+/'="#2$"5)8*"#%*"-2/3,$*$")2"#"?)3,2'#%A":#5-5B

]" W0*"+22*U"')"'0-5"()$*"5,88#%-5*5"-2"#"S)9/0#%'"

how this Code must be applied to audit and to 

certain other functions of the Auditor General, and 

outlines the functions to which the provisions of 

'0-5"()$*"#@@3A")2"#"5'#',')%A":#5-5B"

_" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"9-33"-55,*"5,@@3*8*2'#%A"

guidance on the application of this Code, including 

arrangements for how compliance with this Code 

will be assessed.

K" b2$*%"'0*"L)/#3"1)?*%28*2'"R4#3*5T"Y*#5,%*"

2009, the Auditor General must prepare a 

5'#'*8*2'")&"@%#/'-/*"'0#'"$*5/%-:*5"'0*"9#A"-2"

which he or she intends to exercise the Auditor 

1*2*%#3[5"3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'"-8@%)?*8*2'"

assessment, improvement information and 

planning audit and associated reporting and 

/)M)%$-2#'-)2"&,2/'-)25B"W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"0#5"

prepared such a statement (see Part 2 of this 

/)25,3'#'-)2TB"W0*"7'#'*8*2'"$)*5"2)'"&)%8"@#%'"

)&"'0-5"()$*":,'"0#5":**2"@%*@#%*$"-2"5,/0"#"9#A"

that it is aligned with it.

D""W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"8,5'"@%*@#%*"#"5/0*8*"')"90)33A")%"@#%'3A"$*3*<#'*"#2A")&"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"&,2/'-)25"')"#2"*8@3)A**")&"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*")%"#"@*%5)2"

""""90)"@%)?-$*5"5*%?-/*5"')"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*

P
age 17



]Consultation document

=7.+0"-0)/.+),+0"#$%&+/.&()-+'"3%(+%/+()+-.0)-(+)*+(7.+/(.6'-3/7%0+),+0"#$%&+

>)*.4+'*3+%*+(7.+0-)&.//+0-)A%3.+%*/%B7(+'*3+0-)>)(.+%>0-)A.>.*(

DG" N2"#"$*8)/%#/A="<)?*%28*2'5"#%*"#//),2'#:3*"')"

the public and their elected representatives. To 

&#/-3-'#'*"'0-5"#//),2'#:-3-'A="'0*"@,:3-/"#2$"'0*-%"

%*@%*5*2'#'-?*5"8,5'":*"#$*O,#'*3A"-2&)%8*$"

about the activities of the government and its use 

)&"@,:3-/"&,2$56"'0*A"2**$"-2&)%8#'-)2"90-/0"-5"

'-8*3A="-8@#%'-#3="#//,%#'*="/)8@%*0*25-?*"#2$"

clear. 

11 Independent audit of the activities of government 

#2$")&"'0*",5*")&"@,:3-/"&,2$5":A"'0)5*"/0#%<*$"

with stewardship of those funds is an essential 

/)8@)2*2'")&"$*8)/%#'-/"#//),2'#:-3-'AB"cU'*%2#3"

#,$-')%5"-2$*@*2$*2'3A"*U#8-2*"90*'0*%"@,:3-/"

8)2*A"-5":*-2<"8#2#<*$"9-5*3A"#2$"-5"@%)@*%3A"

accounted for. Public sector audit involves more 

than an opinion on the accounts. It also covers 

-55,*5"5,/0"#5"%*<,3#%-'A"R90*'0*%"@,:3-/"8)2*A"

-5":*-2<",5*$"&)%"#@@%)?*$"@,%@)5*5T="@%)@%-*'A"

R0)9"@,:3-/":,5-2*55"-5":*-2<"/)2$,/'*$T"#2$"

?#3,*"&)%"8)2*AB"+,$-')%5"/#%%A"),'"'0-5"9)%V")2"

behalf of the public and in the public interest. 

N'"-5"2)'"@#%'")&"#,$-')%5["&,2/'-)25"')"O,*5'-)2"

'0*"8*%-'5")&"<)?*%28*2'"@)3-/A=":,'"#,$-')%5"

8#A"*U#8-2*"'0*"#%%#2<*8*2'5":A"90-/0"@)3-/A"

decisions are reached and consider the effects of 

'0*"-8@3*8*2'#'-)2")&"@)3-/AB

DF" +,$-'"#$$5"?#3,*"')"5)/-*'A":A`

a providing assurance on the governance and 

5'*9#%$50-@")&"@,:3-/"8)2*A"#2$"#55*'56

b offering insight on the extent to which 

%*5),%/*5"#%*",5*$"9-5*3A"-2"8**'-2<"@*)@3*[5"

2**$56"#2$

/" -$*2'-&A-2<"#2$"@%)8)'-2<"9#A5":A"90-/0"'0*"

@%)?-5-)2")&"@,:3-/"5*%?-/*5"8#A":*"-8@%)?*$B

13 However, external audit cannot act as a substitute 

&)%"<)?*%28*2'5["#2$")'0*%"@,:3-/":)$-*5[")92"

responsibilities, and does not replace the need for 

public bodies to obtain legal or other professional 

advice and to put in place effective internal control 

arrangements, including arrangements for internal 

audit2. It is for public bodies to ensure that their 

business is conducted in accordance with the law 

#2$"@%)@*%"5'#2$#%$5="#2$"'0#'"@,:3-/"8)2*A"-5"

5#&*<,#%$*$="@%)@*%3A"#//),2'*$"&)%"#2$",5*$"

*/)2)8-/#33A="*&>/-*2'3A"#2$"*&&*/'-?*3A3.

DH" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"-5"%*5@)25-:3*"&)%"'0*"#22,#3"

*U'*%2#3"#,$-'")&"'0*"8#X)%-'A")&"@,:3-/"8)2*A"

spent in Wales, including those funds that are 

?)'*$")2"#22,#33A":A"'0*"d#'-)2#3"+55*8:3AB"

c3*8*2'5")&"'0-5"&,2$-2<"#%*"@#55*$":A"'0*"4*350"

Government to the NHS in Wales and to local 

government.

DQ" c#/0"A*#%"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3="9-'0"#55-5'#2/*"

&%)8"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*="$*3-?*%5"#2"*U'*25-?*"

but proportionate programme of external 

#,$-'"9)%V="-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"'0*"+,$-')%"

1*2*%#3[5"5'#',')%A"@)9*%5"#2$"$,'-*5B"W0*"

overall programme includes audits of accounts, 

?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A"*U#8-2#'-)25"#2$"5',$-*5="

local government improvement audits and 

#55*558*2'5="/*%'->/#'-)2")&"<%#2'"/3#-85"#2$"

subsidies, and facilitation of the National Fraud 

Initiative.

D\" 1))$"@%#/'-/*"-5"-$*2'->*$"&%)8"#/%)55"'0*"&,33"

:%*#$'0")&"#,$-'"9)%V"#2$"-5"$-55*8-2#'*$"'0%),<0"

'0*"1))$".%#/'-/*"cU/0#2<*"R#"9*:M:#5*$"

%*5),%/*="&%**3A"#?#-3#:3*"')"#2A)2*T"#2$")'0*%"

media including shared learning seminars.

F""W0*"-2'*%2#3"#,$-'"&,2/'-)2")&"#"@,:3-/":)$A"50),3$"/#%%A"),'"#55,%#2/*"#2$"/)25,3'-2<"#/'-?-'-*5"$*5-<2*$"')"*?#3,#'*"#2$"-8@%)?*"'0*"*&&*/'-?*2*55")&"'0#'":)$A[5"

""""<)?*%2#2/*="%-5V"8#2#<*8*2'"#2$"-2'*%2#3"/)2'%)3"@%)/*55*5B"

3  For further information please see the Statement of the responsibilities of the Auditor General for Wales and of the bodies that he or she audits on our website.

P
age 18



Consultation document8

5%A.+0-%*&%0$./+"*3.-0%*+(7.+'"3%(+6)-C+),+(7.+8"3%()-+9.*.-'$+1+#.%*B+0"#$%&+

focused, independent, proportionate, accountable and sustainable

D]" +3)2<5-$*"5@*/->/"3*<#3"#2$"@%)&*55-)2#3"

%*O,-%*8*2'5=">?*"9-$*3A"%*/)<2-5*$"@%-2/-@3*5"

,2$*%@-2"'0*"#,$-'"9)%V")&"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3B"

+,$-')%5"8,5'"/#%%A"),'"'0*-%"9)%V"/)25-5'*2'3A"-2"

accordance with these principles.

Public focus

18 External audit is carried out on behalf of the 

public and is done in the public interest. The 

scope of public sector audit is wider than in the 

private sector and is essential to the process of 

holding public bodies to account. The public has 

#"3*<-'-8#'*"5'#V*"-2"#,$-'"9)%V"#2$"50),3$":*"

engaged with its processes. Outputs from audit 

9)%V"8,5'":*"#//*55-:3*="'-8*3A="*?-$*2/*M:#5*$"

#2$"%*3*?#2'"')"5'#V*0)3$*%5B"

Independent

19 Audit must be, and be seen to be, independent. 

N'"8,5'":*"/#%%-*$"),'"9-'0"-2'*<%-'A"-2"#"9#A"'0#'"

is objective, impartial and in accordance with 

relevant ethical standards and considerations. 

+,$-')%5"8,5'"2)'":*"/)25'%#-2*$":A"#2A"@#%'-/,3#%"

-2'*%*5'"-2",2$*%'#V-2<"'0*-%"9)%V="#2$"50),3$"

report in public without fear or favour. 

Proportionate

20 Service providers need to be given enough space 

to deliver services to a high standard, while being 

5,:X*/'"')"5,&>/-*2'"3*?*35")&"5/%,'-2AB"7'%-V-2<"

'0-5":#3#2/*"-5"#2"-8@)%'#2'"@#%'")&"'0*"#,$-')%[5"

judgement in determining the nature, scope, scale 

#2$"$,%#'-)2")&"#,$-'"9)%VB"+,$-')%5"#%*"%*O,-%*$"

')",2$*%'#V*"/*%'#-2"'#5V5"#2$"8,5'"):'#-2"'0*"

-2&)%8#'-)2"#2$"*U@3#2#'-)25"2*/*55#%A"')"@%)?-$*"

5,&>/-*2'"*?-$*2/*"')"8**'"'0*-%"%*5@)25-:-3-'-*5="

:,'"'0*A"#%*"2)'"*U@*/'*$"')"%*?-*9"#33"#5@*/'5")&"

#,$-'*$":)$-*5["#%%#2<*8*2'5="5A5'*85")%"%*/)%$5B

8&&)"*('#$.

FD" .,:3-/"5*/')%"#,$-')%5"#%*"@,:3-/3A"&,2$*$"#2$"

are accountable for the stewardship of the 

%*5),%/*5"@%)?-$*$"')"'0*8B"W0*A"8,5'"/#%%A"

),'"'0*-%"9)%V"*/)2)8-/#33A="*&>/-*2'3A"#2$"

*&&*/'-?*3AB"+,$-')%5"8,5'":*"'%#25@#%*2'"-2"'0*-%"

#/'-?-'-*5="-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"'0*"3*<#3"&%#8*9)%V"

'0#'"'0*A"9)%V"-2="5)"'0#'"#33"@#%'-*5",2$*%5'#2$"

the particular purpose for which audit is being 

,2$*%'#V*2B

Sustainable

22 Sustainable development is about meeting the 

needs of the present without compromising the 

#:-3-'A")&"&,',%*"<*2*%#'-)25"')"8**'"'0*-%")92"

2**$5B"+,$-'"9)%V"8,5'":*",2$*%'#V*2"9-'0"

regard to sustainable development as a central 

organising principle for strategic decisions. 

W0%),<0"'0*-%"9)%V="#,$-')%5"8,5'"0#?*"$,*"%*<#%$"

')"'0*"2**$"')"@%)8)'*"5)/-#3"X,5'-/*="*O,#3-'A="

and the enhancement of the natural and cultural 

environment.

Question 1

D)+4)"+'B-..+6%(7+(7.+2A.+0-%*&%0$./+

67%&7+6.+0-)0)/.+/7)"$3+"*3.-0%*+)"-+

'"3%(+6)-CE

P
age 19



9Consultation document

=7.+9.*.-'$+<)3.+1+(7%/+0-./&-%#./+(7.+6'4+'"3%()-/+>"/(+&'--4+)"(+(7.%-+

functions

FC" N2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"'0*">?*"@%-2/-@3*5"3#-$"),'"-2"

'0-5"()$*="'0*"&)33)9-2<"9-33"#@@3AB

FH" 40*2"/#%%A-2<"),'"'0*-%"9)%V="#,$-')%5"8,5'"

/)8@3A"9-'0"#,$-'-2<"#2$"*'0-/#3"5'#2$#%$5"

/,%%*2'3A"-2"&)%/*"#2$"#5"8#A":*"#8*2$*$"&%)8"

time to timeH, and that appear to the Auditor 

General to be relevant. Auditors must also have 

regard to related guidance and advice where this 

appears to the Auditor General to be relevant.

FQ" +,$-')%5"8,5'",2$*%'#V*"'0*-%"9)%V"-2"#//)%$#2/*"

9-'0"#2A"&,%'0*%"<,-$#2/*"-55,*$":A"'0*"+,$-')%"

1*2*%#3"#2$"9-'0"%*<#%$"')"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"

strategic objectives.

F\" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"-5"%*O,-%*$"')"%*@)%'"')"'0*"

d#'-)2#3"(%-8*"+<*2/AQ"#2A"-25'#2/*")&"$*#3-2<5"

-2"'0*"@%)/**$5")&"/%-8*"R8)2*A"3#,2$*%-2<T"'0#'"

auditors encounter during the course of their 

9)%VB"+,$-')%5"8,5'"'0*%*&)%*"'0%),<0),'"'0*"

/),%5*")&"'0*-%"9)%V"8#-2'#-2"#2")@*2"8-2$"#5"')"

'0*"@)55-:-3-'A")&"@*%5)25"$*#3-2<"-2"'0*"@%)/**$5"

)&"/%-8*"#2$"%*@)%'"#2A"V2)93*$<*")%"5,5@-/-)2"

')"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*"Y)2*A"L#,2$*%-2<"

J*@)%'-2<"I&>/*%B"+,$-')%5"8,5'"#35)"*25,%*"'0#'="

" $,%-2<"'0*"/),%5*")&"'0*-%"9)%V="'0*A"/)8@3A"9-'0"

)'0*%"5@*/->/"%*@)%'-2<"%*O,-%*8*2'5\.

!$'**%*B

F]" +,$-')%5"8,5'"@3#2"#2$"$)/,8*2'"'0*"@3#22-2<")&"

'0*-%"9)%VB"W0*A"8,5'`

a have a sound understanding of the relevant 

underpinning audit legislation and professional 

#,$-'-2<"5'#2$#%$56"

b have an overall understanding of the laws, 

regulations, policies, guidance and models of 

<)?*%2#2/*"'0#'"#@@3A"')"'0*":)$-*5"'0*A"#,$-'6

/" /#%%A"),'"-2-'-#3"5/)@-2<"9)%V="-2/3,$-2<"

):'#-2-2<"'0*"?-*95")&"%*3*?#2'"5'#V*0)3$*%5="')"

-2&)%8"'0*"$*5-<2")&"#,$-'"9)%V6

$" 0#?*"%*<#%$"')"#2A"/)%%*5@)2$*2/*"%*/*-?*$"

from the public or other interested parties, 

including disclosures received from individuals 

*8@3)A*$":A"#,$-'*$":)$-*5], about matters 

%*3*?#2'"')"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"&,2/'-)256

*" /)2$,/'"#2"#2#3A5-5")&"'0*"-55,*5"#2$"%-5V5"'0#'"

are relevant to the audit and, with the exception 

)&")@-2-)2"#,$-'"9)%V"R90-/0"-5"<)?*%2*$":A"

#,$-'-2<"#2$"*'0-/#3"5'#2$#%$5T=")%<#2-5*"'0*-%"

9)%V"#%),2$"#"%*3*?#2'"#2$"5'%,/',%*$"5*'")&"

O,*5'-)256

&" $*5-<2"#">*3$9)%V"8*'0)$)3)<A"')"<#'0*%"

-2&)%8#'-)2"-2"#"/)25-5'*2'"9#A"#'"#"3)/#3="

regional and national level as appropriate, but 

2)'"3-8-'*$":A"*U@*/'#'-)25")&",2-&)%8-'A6

<" 0#?*"%*<#%$"')"'0*"&#/'"'0#'"@,:3-/"5*%?-/*5"8#A"

be delivered through a range of collaborative 

arrangements, including partnerships and 

contracts, and consider how to follow public 

8)2*A"#/%)55"5,/0"#%%#2<*8*2'56

0" 0#?*"%*<#%$"')"'0*"9-$*%"5A5'*85")&"#,$-'="

inspection and regulation of public bodies, and:

-" 0#?*"%*<#%$"')"#2A"@%)')/)35"'0#'"'0*"

+,$-')%"1*2*%#3")%"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*"

agrees with other external review bodies 

#2$"#2A"#55)/-#'*$"<,-$#2/*86"#2$

H""N2/3,$-2<"N2'*%2#'-)2#3"7'#2$#%$5")2"+,$-'-2<"#2$")'0*%"-2'*%2#'-)2#33A"%*/)<2-5*$"5'#2$#%$5

Q""b2$*%"'0*"Y)2*A"L#,2$*%-2<"J*<,3#'-)25"FGG]

\""7,/0"#5"'0)5*"%*O,-%*$",2$*%"'0*"()8@#2-*5"+/'"FGG\

]""b2$*%"'0*".,:3-/"N2'*%*5'"e-5/3)5,%*"+/'"DKK_="'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"-5"#"a@%*5/%-:*$"@*%5)2["90)"/#2"%*/*-?*"90-5'3*M:3)9-2<"$-5/3)5,%*5"&%)8"-2$-?-$,#35"*8@3)A*$"

"""":A"#,$-'*$":)$-*5"-2"%*5@*/'")&"'0*"@%)@*%"/)2$,/'")&"@,:3-/":,5-2*55="?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A"#2$"&%#,$"#2$"/)%%,@'-)2"-2"%*3#'-)2"')"'0*"@%)?-5-)2")&"@,:3-/"5*%?-/*5

_"";)%"*U#8@3*="c5'A2="'0*"(#%*"#2$"7)/-#3"7*%?-/*5"N25@*/')%#'*"4#3*5="f*#3'0/#%*"N25@*/')%#'*"4#3*5"#2$"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*"0#?*"5-<2*$"#"5'%#'*<-/"

""""#<%**8*2'")2"/)33#:)%#'-?*"9)%V-2<

P
age 20



Consultation document10

ii where appropriate, establish effective 

/)M)%$-2#'-)2"#%%#2<*8*2'5"9-'0")'0*%"

external review bodies to share information, 

8#V*":*5'",5*")&")?*%#33"%*5),%/*5="#?)-$"

duplication and to ensure that demands on 

#,$-'*$":)$-*5"#%*"8-2-8-5*$6

i have due regard to sustainable development 

as a central organising principle for strategic 

decisions, the need to eliminate discrimination, 

#$?#2/*"*O,#3-'A")&")@@)%',2-'A"#2$"&)5'*%"

good relations9, and to treating the Welsh and 

c2<3-50"3#2<,#<*5")2"#2"*O,#3":#5-5106

j discuss the audit plan with audited bodies at 

#2"*#%3A"5'#<*"90*%*?*%"@)55-:3*="-2/3,$-2<"

#2'-/-@#'*$"/)5'5"#2$"0)9"'0*A"/#2"/)2'%-:,'*"

')"'0*"$*3-?*%A")&"#2"*&>/-*2'"#,$-'="&)%"*U#8@3*="

'0%),<0"'-8*3A"#2$"*&&*/'-?*"@%)$,/'-)2")&"

%*O,-%*$"9)%V-2<"@#@*%5"#2$":A"%*5@)2$-2<"

&,33A"#2$"@%)8@'3A"')"%*O,*5'5"&)%"-2&)%8#'-)26"

and

V" %*?-*9"'0*"@3#2"'0%),<0),'"'0*"#,$-'"#2$"

,@$#'*"#5"2*/*55#%AB

5%.$36)-C

F_" 40-3*"/#%%A-2<"),'">*3$9)%V="#,$-')%5"8,5'`

#" /#%%A"),'"'0*-%"9)%V"@%)&*55-)2#33A"-2"

accordance with relevant legislation, auditing 

5'#2$#%$5"#2$"9-'0"<,-$#2/*"-55,*$":A"'0*"

+,$-')%"1*2*%#36

:" 3-#-5*"*&&*/'-?*3A"9-'0"#2A"%*3*?#2'"-2'*%2#3"#,$-'"

functions in line with international auditing 

5'#2$#%$56

/" ):'#-2"5,/0"-2&)%8#'-)2"#5"-5"2*/*55#%A=",5-2<"

relevant legal rights of access to provide 

#259*%5"')"#2A"%*O,-%*$""O,*5'-)25"#2$"')"8**'"

5'#',')%A"#2$"@%)&*55-)2#3"%*5@)25-:-3-'-*56

d capture and consider the views, experiences 

and concerns of service users, providers and 

)'0*%"%*3*?#2'"5'#V*0)3$*%5="#5"#@@%)@%-#'*6

*" 9)%V"*&>/-*2'3A="@3#/-2<"%*3-#2/*")2"9)%V"

@%*?-),53A",2$*%'#V*2":A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3="

#3)2<5-$*"%):,5'"5*3&M*?#3,#'-)2"#/'-?-'A="

'0*"9)%V")&"-2'*%2#3"#,$-'"#2$"'0#'")&")'0*%"

external review bodies, whenever possible and 

#@@%)@%-#'*6

&" %*?-*9"90*'0*%"#,$-'*$":)$-*5"0#?*"@%)@*%3A"

/)25-$*%*$"#2A"%*3#'*$"8#''*%5"'0#'"0#?*":**2"

-$*2'->*$"@%*?-),53A="-2/3,$-2<":A"-2'*%2#3"#,$-'="

the Auditor General and other external review 

bodies, and whether recommended actions 

0#?*":**2"-8@3*8*2'*$6

<" ):'#-2"-2&)%8#'-)2"-2"#"9#A"'0#'"&#/-3-'#'*5"

:*2/08#%V-2<="@*%&)%8#2/*"/)8@#%-5)2"

)&"),'/)8*5"#2$"'0*"-$*2'->/#'-)2")&"<))$"

@%#/'-/*="90*%*?*%"@)55-:3*6"

h ensure that all data received or obtained is held 

5*/,%*3A"#2$"-2"/)8@3-#2/*"9-'0"5'#',')%A"#2$"

)'0*%"%*O,-%*8*2'5"%*3#'-2<"')"'0*"/)33*/'-)2"

#2$")'0*%"@%)/*55-2<")&"-2&)%8#'-)26"

-" /)88,2-/#'*"%*<,3#%3A"9-'0"#,$-'*$":)$-*5"#2$"

*25,%*"'0#'"*8*%<-2<">2$-2<5"#%*"$-5/,55*$"

#'"'0*"#@@%)@%-#'*"3*?*3"#2$"-2"#"'-8*3A"9#A="#5"

2*/*55#%A6"#2$

j document and share information with other 

#,$-')%5")2"-55,*5"#%-5-2<"&%)8"'0*-%"9)%V"'0#'"

/),3$"0#?*"#":*#%-2<")%"5-<2->/#2/*")2")'0*%"

#,$-'"9)%V":*-2<",2$*%'#V*2":A"'0*"+,$-')%"

General, or inform future programmes of audit 

9)%VB

K""+5"3#-$"),'"-2"'0*"cO,#3-'A"+/'"FGDG"#2$"'0*"Strategic Equality Plan")&"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*

10  As laid out in the Welsh Language Scheme")&"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*

P
age 21



11Consultation document

29 The Auditor General has extensive legal rights of 

access to information and documents which are 

important for the proper exercise of the Auditor 

1*2*%#3[5"&,2/'-)25B"W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"9-33"

'#V*"#"%-<)%),5"#@@%)#/0"')9#%$5"*2&)%/-2<"5,/0"

rights, since the obstruction of access rights fetters 

#,$-')%5["#:-3-'A"')"@%)@*%3A"/#%%A"),'"'0*-%"9)%V"#2$"

$%-?*5",@"'0*"/)5'5")&"'0#'"9)%VB

CG" W)"#?)-$"#2A"@)'*2'-#3"8-5,2$*%5'#2$-2<"90*2"-'"

appears that access rights are being obstructed 

:A"#2A"@*%5)2="#,$-')%5"9-33"/)88,2-/#'*"'0*"

%*3*?#2'"%-<0'5"')"'0*"@*%5)2"-2"O,*5'-)2B"N&"'0*"

@*%5)2"5'-33"5**V5"')"):5'%,/'"#//*55"&)33)9-2<"

this communication, the Auditor General will 

pursue legal action to gain access to the relevant 

$)/,8*2'5"#2$"%*/)?*%"#2A"#55)/-#'*$"/)5'5B

F.0)-(%*B

CD" +&'*%"/)2/3,$-2<">*3$9)%V="#,$-')%5"8,5'`

#" $%#9"*?-$*2/*M:#5*$"/)2/3,5-)25"#:),'"

'0*"),'/)8*5")&">*3$9)%V"#2$"#259*%"#2A"

O,*5'-)25"'0#'"'0*"9)%V"5*'"),'"')"#$$%*556

b consider whether their conclusions are 

/)25-5'*2'"9-'0"'0)5*"#%-5-2<"&%)8"'0*"9)%V")&"

internal audit or other external review bodies, 

90*%*"#@@%)@%-#'*6

/" $*'*%8-2*"'0*"V*A"8*55#<*5"#2$"'0*"5'%,/',%*"

)&"'0*"),'@,'5"'0%),<0"90-/0"'0*A"9-33":*"

%*@)%'*$6

d offer audited bodies and relevant third parties 

'0*")@@)%',2-'A"')"/)88*2'")2"'0*"&#/',#3"

#//,%#/A")&"'0*">2$-2<5="#5"#@@%)@%-#'*6

*" 8#V*"%*/)88*2$#'-)25"&)%"-8@%)?*8*2'="

90*%*"%*3*?#2'="90-/0="-2"'0*"#,$-')%[5"

judgement, are:

-" ,5*&,3="5@*/->/"#2$"@%#/'-/#:3*"#2$"&)/,5*$""

)2"'0*"-2'*%*5'5")&"'0*"@,:3-/6

--"""/)25-5'*2'"9-'0"5,5'#-2#:3*"$*?*3)@8*2'6"

and that

---"""'#V*"#//),2'")&"'0*"#2'-/-@#'*$"/)5'5")&"

implementation and report where these are     

3-V*3A"')":*"5-<2->/#2'6

f produce outputs that:

-" /)8@3A"9-'0"5'#',')%A"#2$"@%)&*55-)2#3"

%*@)%'-2<"%*O,-%*8*2'56"

--" #%*"#//*55-:3*="'-8*3A="/3*#%"#2$"/)2/-5*6

iii are written in plain language, avoiding 

jargon and technical terms, wherever 

@)55-:3*6

-?" )23A"-$*2'-&A"-2$-?-$,#35="90*'0*%":A"2#8*="

job title or other information, to the extent 

'0#'"-'"-5"2*/*55#%A"')"@%)?-$*"#"@%)@*%"

%*@)%'6

v are open about the scope and limits of the 

9)%V6""

?-" 90*%*"@)55-:3*"#2$"#@@%)@%-#'*="-$*2'-&A"#2$"

O,#2'-&A"@)'*2'-#3"5#?-2<5"#2$"*&>/-*2/-*5="

#3)2<5-$*"/)88)2"%-5V5"&#/*$":A"@,:3-/"

:)$-*5"-2"4#3*5"#2$"*35*90*%*6"#2$

?--" -2/3,$*")%"8#V*"%*&*%*2/*"')"*U#8@3*5")&"

<))$"@%#/'-/*="#5"#@@%)@%-#'*6

P
age 22



Consultation document12

g encourage and challenge service providers to 

-8@%)?*="-2/3,$-2<"'0%),<0"'#V-2<")92*%50-@"

)&"#,$-'">2$-2<5"#2$"%*/)88*2$#'-)25"#2$"

<-?-2<"/)25-$*%#'-)2"')"#2A"*U#8@3*5")&"<))$"

@%#/'-/*6

0" *8@0#5-5*"'0#'"#2A"9*#V2*55*5")%"%-5V5"

-$*2'->*$"#%*")23A"'0)5*"90-/0"0#?*"/)8*"')"

'0*-%"#''*2'-)2"$,%-2<"'0*-%"9)%V"#2$"8#A"2)'":*"

#33"'0#'"*U-5'6"#2$

-" *25,%*"'0#'"#,$-'"V2)93*$<*"#2$"3*#%2-2<"

can be made available to a wide range of 

5'#V*0)3$*%5"#2$":*2*>/-#%-*5="')"8#U-8-5*"

'0*"@)'*2'-#3"-8@#/'"#2$"?#3,*")&"'0*"9)%VB

5)$$)6%*B+"0

CF" +&'*%"%*@)%'-2<")2"'0*-%">2$-2<5="#,$-')%5"8,5'`

#" 90*%*"#@@%)@%-#'*="%*O,*5'"#"%*5@)25*"

&%)8"%*3*?#2'"@#%'-*5"')"'0*-%">2$-2<5"#2$"

%*/)88*2$#'-)25="#2$"5'#'*"90*'0*%"'0*A"#%*"

5#'-5>*$"'0#'">2$-2<5"#2$"%*/)88*2$#'-)25"

0#?*":**2"@%)@*%3A"/)25-$*%*$116

:" 8)2-')%"#2A"#/'-)25"'#V*2"-2"%*5@)25*"')"'0*-%"

%*/)88*2$#'-)256

/" /)88*2'="#5"2*/*55#%A"#2$"'0%),<0"

appropriate channels, on progress made 

on implementing recommendations, and on 

%*/)88*2$#'-)25"'0#'"0#?*"2)'":**2"@%)@*%3A"

/)25-$*%*$")%"#/'*$",@)26

$" 0#?*"%*<#%$"')"#2A"&,%'0*%"/)%%*5@)2$*2/*"

received from the public or other interested 

@#%'-*5="-2/3,$-2<"#2A"&,%'0*%"$-5/3)5,%*5"

%*/*-?*$"&%)8"-2$-?-$,#35"*8@3)A*$":A"#,$-'*$"

bodies, about matters relevant to the audit 

>2$-2<5"#2$"%*/)88*2$#'-)256

*" 5**V"')"-$*2'-&A"#$$-'-)2#3")@@)%',2-'-*5"&)%"

50#%-2<"#,$-'"V2)93*$<*"#2$"3*#%2-2<="-2/3,$-2<"

?-#")%<#2-5#'-)25="@%)?-$*%5"#2$"2*'9)%V5"90)"

#%*"#/'-?*"-2"'0*">*3$")&"V2)93*$<*"'%#25&*%="#5"

#@@%)@%-#'*6

&" 90*%*"%*3*?#2'"#2$",5*&,3="8#V*"/#5*"5',$A"

examples of good practice and innovation 

available for addition to the content of the Good 

.%#/'-/*"cU/0#2<*6

g where appropriate, relevant and useful, 

@%)#/'-?*3A")&&*%"/)88*2'#%A"#2$"-25-<0'"&%)8"

#,$-'"9)%V"')"@,:3-/"5*/')%"@)3-/AM8#V*%5"#2$"

9)%V-2<"<%),@56

0" -2-'-#'*"&,%'0*%"#,$-'"9)%V="90*%*"-'"-5"

/)25-$*%*$"2*/*55#%A"')"8**'"5'#',')%A"

%*5@)25-:-3-'-*56

-" %*5@)2$"@)5-'-?*3A"')"'0*"%*5,3'5")&"O,#3-'A"

8)2-')%-2<="%*?-*95")&"'0*-%"9)%V":A"'0*"+,$-')%"

General and other review bodies, and external 

5'#V*0)3$*%"&**$:#/V="-2/3,$-2<"'0#'"%*/*-?*$"

&%)8"#,$-'*$":)$-*56"#2$

X" %*S*/'")2"'0*-%"9)%V"#2$",5*"'0*"3*#%2-2<"

')"-2&)%8"&,',%*"@%)<%#88*5")&"#,$-'"9)%V"

and to further improve audit processes and 

methodologies.

DD""J*5@)25-:-3-'A"&)%"-8@3*8*2'-2<"%*/)88*2$#'-)25="#2$"'0*"8*/0#2-585"'0%),<0"90-/0"'0-5"-5"$)2*="3-*5"5)3*3A"9-'0"'0*"#,$-'*$":)$A

Question 2

D)+4)"+'B-..+6%(7+(7.+&)*(.*(+),+(7.+

0-)0)/.3+9.*.-'$+<)3.+67%&7+0-./&-%#./+

(7.+6'4+'"3%()-/+>"/(+0$'*G+&'--4+)"(G+

-.0)-(+'*3+,)$$)6+"0+)*+(7.%-+6)-CE

P
age 23



13Consultation document

33 In addition to the General Code and in accordance 

with the principles of being public focused, 

independent, proportionate, accountable and 

5,5'#-2#:3*="'0*"&)33)9-2<"9-33"#@@3A"-2"&,33",23*55"

5@*/->*$":A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"R5**"@#%#<%#@0"

HDTB

8"3%(+),+'&&)"*(/+'*3+A'$".+,)-+>)*.4+

examinations and studies

CH" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"-55,*5"%*@)%'5")2"'0*"

accounts of public service bodies that he or she 

audits. Audit reports include an opinion on:

#" 90*'0*%"'0*">2#2/-#3"5'#'*8*2'5"@%)@*%3A"

@%*5*2'="@%*5*2'"&#-%3A")%"<-?*"#"'%,*"#2$"&#-%"

?-*9")&="#5"#@@%)@%-#'*="'0*">2#2/-#3"#&&#-%5")&"

'0*":)$A6

:" 90*'0*%"'0*">2#2/-#3"5'#'*8*2'5"0#?*"

:**2"@%*@#%*$"@%)@*%3A"-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"

relevant legislation, directions and applicable 

#//),2'-2<"5'#2$#%$56"#2$

/" '0*"%*<,3#%-'A")&"'0*"'%#25#/'-)25="#'":)$-*5"

90*%*"'0-5"-5"%*O,-%*$B

CQ" +,$-')%5"9-33"@%)?-$*"%*#5)2#:3*"#55,%#2/*"'0#'"

'0*"%*3#'*$">2#2/-#3"5'#'*8*2'5`"

a are free from material misstatement, whether 

/#,5*$":A"&%#,$")%")'0*%"-%%*<,3#%-'A")%"*%%)%6

:" /)8@3A"9-'0"5'#',')%A"#2$")'0*%"#@@3-/#:3*"

%*O,-%*8*2'5="-2/3,$-2<"'0*"%*<,3#%-'A")&"

'%#25#/'-)25"#'":)$-*5"90*%*"'0-5"-5"%*O,-%*$6"

and

/" 5#'-5&A"#33"%*3*?#2'"#//),2'-2<"@%*5*2'#'-)2"#2$"

"$-5/3)5,%*"%*O,-%*8*2'5B

C\" +,$-')%5"9-33="90*%*"%*O,-%*$="%*?-*9"#2$"%*@)%'")2"

the Whole of Government Accounts return.

C]" +,$-')%5"9-33"@%)?-$*"#55,%#2/*")2"'0*"

effectiveness of governance arrangements and, 

where appropriate, on other issues of public 

interest. To this end, auditors will: 

#" %*?-*9"<)?*%2#2/*"5'#'*8*2'5"')"/)2>%8"'0#'"

these are not inconsistent with the audited 

>2#2/-#3"5'#'*8*2'5"#2$")'0*%"-2&)%8#'-)2")&"

90-/0"'0*A"#%*"#9#%*6"#2$

b report, as appropriate, on matters that might 

not be material to the audit opinion but 

90-/0"#%*")&"@,:3-/"-2'*%*5'="5,/0"#5">2#2/-#3"

standing, standards of conduct and the 

*&>/-*2/A"#2$"*&&*/'-?*2*55")&`"

-" <)?*%2#2/*"#%%#2<*8*2'5"#2$"5A5'*85")&"

-2'*%2#3"/)2'%)36

--" >2#2/-#3"5A5'*856"#2$

iii arrangements for the prevention and 

$*'*/'-)2")&"&%#,$"#2$"-%%*<,3#%-'-*5=":%-:*%A"

and corruption.

C_" N2"9)%V-2<"')"5#'-5&A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"'0#'"#"

3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'")%"df7":)$A"0#5"8#$*"@%)@*%"

#%%#2<*8*2'5"&)%"5*/,%-2<"*/)2)8A="*&>/-*2/A"

and effectiveness in its use of resources, auditors 

9-33"#@@3A"/%-'*%-#"5@*/->*$":A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3B"

For local government bodies, auditors will 

also place reliance on the following sources of 

assurance:

#" '0*"%*5,3'5")&"'0*"#,$-'"9)%V",2$*%'#V*2")2"

'0*">2#2/-#3"5'#'*8*2'5="'0*"*&&*/'-?*2*55")&"

governance arrangements and on other issues 

)&"@,:3-/"-2'*%*5'6

=7.+H0.&%2&+<)3.+1+(7%/+,"-(7.-+0-./&-%#./+(7.+6'4+'"3%()-/+>"/(+&'--4+)"(+

0'-(%&"$'-+,"*&(%)*/G+'/+0'-(+),+'+&)I)-3%*'(.3+'00-)'&7+()+'"3%(+6)-C

P
age 24



Consultation documentDH

:" '0*"%*5,3'5")&")'0*%"9)%V"/#%%-*$"),'":A"'0*"

+,$-')%"1*2*%#3="-2/3,$-2<"?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A"

*U#8-2#'-)25"#2$"5',$-*5="/*%'->/#'-)2")&"

claims and returns, data matching exercises 

#2$"9)%V"/#%%-*$"),'",2$*%"'0*"L)/#3"

1)?*%28*2'"R4#3*5T"Y*#5,%*"FGGK6

/" '0*"%*5,3'5")&"'0*"9)%V")&"-2'*%2#3"#,$-'"#2$")&"

other external review bodies where appropriate 

#2$"%*3*?#2'"')"'0*"#,$-')%[5"%*5@)25-:-3-'-*56"

and

$" #2A")'0*%"9)%V"'0#'"#$$%*55*5"8#''*%5"2)'"

/)?*%*$":A"'0*"#:)?*="#2$"90-/0"'0*"#,$-')%"

/)25-$*%5"2*/*55#%A"')"$-5/0#%<*"'0*-%"

responsibilities.

CK" .3#25"#2$"%*5,3'5")&""#,$-'"9)%V",2$*%'#V*2")2"'0*"

>2#2/-#3"5'#'*8*2'5"9-33":*"%*@)%'*$"?-#"#"%#2<*"

)&"#@@%)@%-#'*"),'@,'5B"W0*"&)33)9-2<"),'@,'5"8#A"

:*"-55,*$":A"'0*"#,$-')%"#'"V*A"@)-2'5"-2"'0*"#,$-'"

process:

#" #2"#,$-'"@3#22-2<"$)/,8*2'6

b oral and written reports or memoranda to 

appropriate individuals on the results of, or 

8#''*%5"#%-5-2<"&%)8="5@*/->/"#5@*/'5")&"'0*"

#,$-')%[5"9)%V6

c a report to those charged with governance 

5,88#%-5-2<"'0*">2$-2<5"#2$"/)2/3,5-)25")&"

'0*"#,$-')%6""

$" #2"#,$-'"%*@)%'"-2/3,$-2<"'0*"#,$-')%[5"

)@-2-)2R5T")2"'0*">2#2/-#3"5'#'*8*2'56

*" /*%'->/#'-)2"'0#'"'0*"#,$-'")&"'0*"#//),2'5""

has been completed in accordance with 

5'#',')%A"%*O,-%*8*2'56"#2$

&" #"%*3#'*$"5,:5'#2'-?*"%*@)%'"-&"'0*"#,$-')%[5"

)@-2-)2"-5"O,#3->*$12 or if the Auditor General 

9-50*5"')"%*@)%'")2"#2A"8#''*%B

HG" W0*"#,$-')%"8#A"#35)"-55,*"&,%'0*%"),'@,'5"-2"

accordance with relevant legislation and guidance. 

W0),<0"2)'"*U0#,5'-?*="'0-5"8#A"-2/3,$*"%*@)%'5"

made in the public interest, statements of reasons 

&)33)9-2<"):X*/'-)25"%#-5*$":A"3)/#3"#,'0)%-'A"

electors, responses to correspondence, and 

&**$:#/V")2"#2"*U/*@'-)2":#5-5"90*%*"#2A")&"'0*"

-2&)%8#'-)2"%*?-*9*$"-2$-/#'*5"5-<2->/#2'"&#-3,%*5"

')"@*%&)%8"'0*"1*2*%#3"cO,#3-'A"e,'A")2"'0*"@#%'")&"

audited bodies.

HD" W0*%*"9-33":*"/-%/,85'#2/*5"-2"90-/0"#5@*/'5")&"

'0*"7@*/->/"()$*"8#A":*"-2#@@%)@%-#'*"')"'0*"

audit of accounts of certain bodies, for example, 

$,*"')"'0*"%*3#'-?*3A"58#33"#8),2'5")&"@,:3-/"

8)2*A"/)2'%)33*$":A"'0*":)$-*5"-2"O,*5'-)2B"N2"

/#%%A-2<"),'"'0*"#,$-'")&"5,/0":)$-*5="#,$-')%5"

8,5'"/#%%A"),'"'0*-%"9)%V"-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"

<,-$#2/*"-55,*$":A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3B"N2"

/#%%A-2<"),'"'0*"#,$-'")&"58#33":)$-*5"9-'0"*-'0*%"

annual income or annual expenditure below a 

>2#2/-#3"3-8-'"$*'*%8-2*$":A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"

&%)8"'-8*"')"'-8*="#,$-')%5"8,5'"#@@3A"7/0*$,3*"

F")&"'0-5"()$*"-&"$-%*/'*$"')"$)"5)":A"'0*"+,$-')%"

General.

HF" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"0#5"@)9*%5"')"*U#8-2*"'0*"

*/)2)8A="*&>/-*2/A"#2$"*&&*/'-?*2*55"R')<*'0*%"

V2)92"#5"?#3,*"&)%"8)2*AT"9-'0"90-/0"@,:3-/"

5*%?-/*":)$-*5="-2$-?-$,#33A")%"/)33*/'-?*3A=",5*"

'0*-%"%*5),%/*5="#2$"')"8#V*"%*/)88*2$#'-)25"&)%"

-8@%)?-2<"?#3,*"&)%"8)2*AB"W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"

8#A"#35)",2$*%'#V*")'0*%"'A@*5")&"*U#8-2#'-)25"

and studies.

HC" N2"%*3#'-)2"')"3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'":)$-*5="'0*"+,$-')%"

1*2*%#3"0#5"$,'-*5"')",2$*%'#V*"5',$-*5"*#/0"

>2#2/-#3"A*#%"')"*2#:3*"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"')"

8#V*"%*/)88*2$#'-)25"&)%"-8@%)?-2<`

DF""+5")@@)5*$"')"#2",2O,#3->*$")@-2-)2="90-/0"-5"*U@%*55*$"90*2"'0*"#,$-')%"/)2/3,$*5"'0#'"'0*">2#2/-#3"5'#'*8*2'5"<-?*"#"'%,*"#2$"&#-%"?-*9="#%*"@%)@*%3A"@%*5*2'*$"

"""""")%"#%*"@%*5*2'*$"&#-%3A"R#5"#@@%)@%-#'*T="-2"#33"8#'*%-#3"%*5@*/'5"#2$"-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"'0*"#@@3-/#:3*">2#2/-#3"%*@)%'-2<"&%#8*9)%V

P
age 25



DQConsultation document

#" ?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A"-2"'0*"$-5/0#%<*")&"&,2/'-)25")&"

Welsh improvement authorities136

:" ?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A"-2"'0*"@%)?-5-)2")&"5*%?-/*5":A"

)'0*%"3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'":)$-*56"#2$

/" '0*">2#2/-#3")%")'0*%"8#2#<*8*2'")&"3)/#3"

government bodies. 

HH" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"#35)"0#5"$,'-*5"')",2$*%'#V*"

?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A"5',$-*5")&"'0*"-8@#/'")&"5'#',')%A"

@%)?-5-)25"#2$"4*350"Y-2-5'*%5["$-%*/'-)25"#2$"

guidance on local government bodies. The Auditor 

1*2*%#3"8#A"#35)",2$*%'#V*")'0*%"5',$-*5"%*3#'-2<"

')"'0*"@%)?-5-)2")&"5*%?-/*5":A"3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'"

:)$-*5="#2$"8#A",2$*%'#V*":*2*>'"#$8-2-5'%#'-)2"

5',$-*5"&)%"'0*"7*/%*'#%A")&"7'#'*B

HQ" W0*5*"&,2/'-)25"8#A":*"*U*%/-5*$="-2"/)8:-2#'-)2"

-&"2*/*55#%A="#/%)55"$-&&*%*2'"'A@*5")&":)$-*5="

to examine public spending irrespective of who 

delivers the services. The results from value for 

8)2*A"*U#8-2#'-)25"#2$"5',$-*5"R)'0*%"'0#2"'0)5*"

,2$*%'#V*2"5)3*3A"-2"%*3#'-)2"')"3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'"

:)$-*5T"8#A":*"@%*5*2'*$"')"'0*"d#'-)2#3"

+55*8:3A"#2$"/)25-$*%*$":A"-'5".,:3-/"+//),2'5"

Committee.

H\" N2"%*3#'-)2"')"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"*U#8-2#'-)2"

#2$"5',$A"&,2/'-)25="'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"9-33"

consider, among other things, the following in 

$*/-$-2<"90#'"9)%V"')",2$*%'#V*`"

a levels of public interest and concernDH6

b the scale of the issues and the circumstances 

#2$"%-5V5"-2?)3?*$6

/" 90*'0*%"'0*"9)%V"-5"'-8*3A6

$" 90*'0*%"'0*"3*55)25"3*#%2*$"#%*"3-V*3A"')":*"

'%#25&*%#:3*6"#2$

*" '0*"@)'*2'-#3"?#3,*")&"'0*"9)%V"-2"'*%85")&"

8)2*'#%A"5#?-2<5="-8@%)?*$"5*%?-/*5"#2$"

improved management or governance.

H]" ;)%"#2A"@#%'-/,3#%"*U#8-2#'-)2")%"5',$A="#,$-')%5"

will use the approach prescribed in the General 

()$*"')"$*?*3)@"#">*3$9)%V"8*'0)$)3)<A"'0#'"

enables them to determine the extent to which 

?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A"0#5":**2"#/0-*?*$")%"8#A":*"

improved, or in the case of studies that do not 

/)2/*%2"?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A="')",2$*%'#V*"5,/0"

#2#3A5-5"#5"-5">'"&)%"@,%@)5*B"40*%*"#@@3-/#:3*="

this will extend to assessing the effectiveness of 

<)?*%2#2/*"#%%#2<*8*2'5="-2/3,$-2<"#2A"5*%?-/*"

$*3-?*%A"@#%'2*%50-@5"#2$"/)33#:)%#'-?*"9)%V-2<"

arrangements.

H_" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"9-33"5**V"#2$"'#V*"#//),2'")&"

the views of people who represent the interests of 

protected groupsDQ in deciding what examinations 

#2$"5',$-*5"')",2$*%'#V*B"N2"$*/-$-2<"'0*"/)?*%#<*"

)&"#2A"*U#8-2#'-)25"#2$"5',$-*5"'0#'"#%*"%*3*?#2'"

')"'0*"1*2*%#3"cO,#3-'A"e,'A="#2$"-2"$*?-5-2<"

>*3$9)%V"&)%"5,/0"@%)X*/'5="#,$-')%5"8,5'"5**V"

the views of people that represent the interests 

)&"@%)'*/'*$"<%),@5="5)"#5"')"'#V*"#//),2'")&"'0*"

needs of those groups.

<.-(%2&'(%)*+),+&$'%>/+'*3+-.("-*/

HK" N&"%*O,-%*$"')"$)"5)":A"#"%*3*?#2'":)$AD\, the 

+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"8,5'"8#V*"#%%#2<*8*2'5"&)%"

/*%'-&A-2<`

a claims or returns for grants, subsidies or 

/)2'%#/'"@#A8*2'5"%*/*-?*$"&%)8"<)?*%28*2'5"

#2$"@,:3-/"#,'0)%-'-*56

:" %*',%25"&)%"2)2M$)8*5'-/"%#'-2<"/)2'%-:,'-)256"

and

DC""(),2'A"#2$"/),2'A":)%),<0"/),2/-35="d#'-)2#3".#%V"#,'0)%-'-*5"#2$">%*"#2$"%*5/,*"#,'0)%-'-*5"-2"4#3*5"#%*"/)33*/'-?*3A"$*>2*$"#5"a-8@%)?*8*2'"#,'0)%-'-*5["-2"'0*"

""""""L)/#3"1)?*%28*2'"R4#3*5T"Y*#5,%*"FGGK

DH""N2/3,$-2<"-2"@#%'-/,3#%"'0*"?-*95")&"'0*"d#'-)2#3"+55*8:3A[5".,:3-/"+//),2'5"()88-''**"#2$"3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'="90*%*"%*3*?#2'

DQ""+5"$*>2*$":A"'0*"cO,#3-'A"+/'"FGDG

D\""aJ*3*?#2'":)$-*5["#%*"#5"5*'"),'"-2"@#%#<%#@0"FG")&"7/0*$,3*"_"')"'0*"1)?*%28*2'")&"4#3*5"+/'"FGG\

P
age 26



Consultation documentD\

/" #2A")'0*%"%*',%2"90-/0"3*<-53#'-)2"%*O,-%*5"'0*"

+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"')"8#V*"#%%#2<*8*2'5"&)%"

R#"/,%%*2'"*U#8@3*":*-2<"'0#'"&)%"'*#/0*%5["

@*25-)2"/)2'%-:,'-)25TB"

QG" +,$-')%5"8,5'"$*5-<2"/*%'->/#'-)2"9)%V"9-'0-2"

'0*"%*O,-%*8*2'5")&"5'#','*"#2$"')"@%)?-$*"#"

proportionate degree of assurance that grant 

/3#-85"#2$"%*',%25"#%*"&#-%3A"5'#'*$"#2$"-2"

#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"5@*/->*$"'*%85"#2$"/)2$-'-)25B"

W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"9-33"*2/),%#<*"<%#2'M

@#A-2<":)$-*5"')"#<%**"#@@%)@%-#'*"/*%'->/#'-)2"

#%%#2<*8*2'5":*&)%*"'0*A"8#V*"/*%'->/#'-)2"#"

condition of a grant or return.

QD" e*@*2$-2<")2"'0*"/-%/,85'#2/*5="/*%'->/#'-)2"

8#A"2)'":*"'0*"8)5'"*&&*/'-?*"8*#25")&"@%)?-$-2<"

#55,%#2/*B"+,$-')%5"8,5'"-2&)%8"<%#2'M@#A-2<"

:)$-*5"'0#'"/*%'->/#'-)2"50),3$")23A":*"%*O,-%*$"

90*%*"'0*%*"-5"#"/3*#%"X,5'->/#'-)2"&)%"-'="%#'0*%"

than as a matter of course. The Auditor General 

9-33"@%)?-$*"#$?-/*"')"<%#2'M@#A-2<":)$-*5"5**V-2<"

/*%'->/#'-)2")2"'0*"8)5'"*&&*/'-?*"8*#25")&"

obtaining assurance. 

QF" 40*%*"<%#2'M@#A-2<":)$-*5"0#?*"$*/-$*$"

')"%*O,-%*"/*%'->/#'-)2="#,$-')%5"9-33"*U*%/-5*"

discretion in meeting their obligations and will 

8#V*"#"X,$<*8*2'")2"/*%'->/#'-)2"#%%#2<*8*2'5"

-2"5@*/->/"/#5*5="0#?-2<"/)25-$*%*$`

a the particular circumstances of a scheme and 

'0*"5,85"-2?)3?*$6"

b the level of assurance sought and potential 

#3'*%2#'-?*"5),%/*5")&"#55,%#2/*"#?#-3#:3*6

/" '0*"%):,5'2*55")&"'0*"/%-'*%-#"')":*"#@@3-*$6"#2$

$" '0*"2#',%*")%"*U'*2'")&"'0*"9)%V"%*O,-%*$B

QC" N2",2$*%'#V-2<"/*%'->/#'-)2"9)%V="#,$-')%5"8,5'"

&)33)9"'0*"%*O,-%*8*2'5")&"'0*"(*%'->/#'-)2"

Instruction agreed between the Auditor General 

#2$"'0*"<%#2'M@#A-2<":)$AB"40*%*?*%"@%#/'-/#:3*="

#,$-')%5"8,5'"-2'*<%#'*"'0*-%"/*%'->/#'-)2"#/'-?-'-*5"

9-'0"'0*-%"#,$-'")&"#//),2'5"#2$"?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A"

*U#8-2#'-)2"#2$"5',$A"9)%VB

QH" +,$-')%5"8,5'"#35)"/)25-$*%"90*'0*%"#2A")&"

'0*"-2&)%8#'-)2"%*?-*9*$"90*2",2$*%'#V-2<"

/*%'->/#'-)2"9)%V"-2$-/#'*5"5-<2->/#2'"&#-3,%*5"')"

@*%&)%8"'0*"1*2*%#3"cO,#3-'A"e,'A")2"'0*"@#%'")&"

@,:3-/"5*%?-/*":)$-*5="#2$"9-33"@%)?-$*"&**$:#/V")2"

this on an exception basis.

JK.-&%/%*B+'"3%(+,"*&(%)*/+),+(7.+

<)>0(-)$$.-+'*3+8"3%()-+9.*.-'$

QQ" W0*"7*/%*'#%A")&"7'#'*"8#A"@%)?-$*"&)%"#,$-'"

functions of the UK Comptroller and Auditor 

General to be transferred to, or become a function 

also of, the Auditor General for Wales.

Q\" 40*2"*U*%/-5-2<"5,/0"#,$-'"&,2/'-)25="#,$-')%5"

8,5'"/#%%A"),'"'0*-%"9)%V"-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"'0*"

principles of being public focused, independent, 

proportionate, accountable and sustainable. 

Auditors will use the approach prescribed in the 

1*2*%#3"()$*"&)%"@3#22-2<="/#%%A-2<"),'="%*@)%'-2<"

#2$"&)33)9-2<",@")2"'0*-%"9)%VB

Question 3

D)+4)"+'B-..+6%(7+(7.+&)*(.*(+),+(7.+

H0.&%2&+<)3.+67%&7+,"-(7.-+0-./&-%#./+

(7.+6'4+'"3%()-/+>"/(+&'--4+)"(+0'-(%&"$'-+

functions, as part of a co-ordinated 

'00-)'&7+()+'"3%(+6)-CE

P
age 27



D]Consultation document

!-)A%3%*B+'3A%&.+'*3+'//%/('*&.+()+(7.+

!"#$%&+8&&)"*(/+<)>>%((..+'*3+)(7.-+

&)>>%((../+),+(7.+L'(%)*'$+8//.>#$4

Q]" W0*"d#'-)2#3"+55*8:3A[5".,:3-/"+//),2'5"

()88-''**"R'0*"()88-''**T"/)25-$*%5"%*@)%'5"

@%*@#%*$":A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3")2"'0*"#//),2'5"

of the Welsh Government and other public bodies, 

#2$")2"'0*"*/)2)8A="*&>/-*2/A"#2$"*&&*/'-?*2*55"

9-'0"90-/0"%*5),%/*5"#%*"*8@3)A*$"-2"'0*"

$-5/0#%<*")&"@,:3-/"&,2/'-)25B"W0*"()88-''**"8#A"

then issue its own reports on matters raised in 

%*@)%'5"@%*@#%*$":A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3="#2$"3#A"

'0)5*"%*@)%'5":*&)%*"'0*"d#'-)2#3"+55*8:3AD].

Q_" W0*"%*/)88*2$#'-)25"5*'"),'"-2"()88-''**"

%*@)%'5"8#A":*"$-%*/'*$"#'"#2A"@#%'")&"'0*"@,:3-/"

sector. However, the remit of the Committee 

does not include holding local government 

bodies to account. The Welsh Government is 

%*O,-%*$"')"%*5@)2$"&)%8#33A"')"'0*"()88-''**[5"

%*@)%'5="')"5#A"90*'0*%")%"2)'"-'"#//*@'5"'0*"

recommendations and, if accepted, how the 

recommendations will be implemented. The Welsh 

1)?*%28*2'[5"%*5@)25*"9-33"-2/3,$*"%*5@)25*5"')"

Committee recommendations directed at itself, 

Welsh Government Sponsored Bodies and NHS 

bodies.

QK" W0*"()88-''**"8#A"5**V"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"

#$?-/*")%"#55-5'#2/*")2"'0*"#$*O,#/A")&"

'0*"4*350"1)?*%28*2'[5"%*5@)25*"')"-'5"

recommendations. In providing such advice 

or assistance, auditors must ensure that the 

+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"-2$*@*2$*2/*"#2$"-2'*<%-'A"

will not be compromised, or be perceived to be 

compromised.

\G" 40*%*"()88-''**"%*@)%'5"-2/3,$*"

recommendations for audited bodies, auditors will 

bring those recommendations to the attention of 

%*3*?#2'")&>/*%5"#2$"2)2M)&>/*%5="&)%"*U#8@3*="

in updates to local audit committees or their 

*O,-?#3*2'B

\D" 40*%*"'0*"()88-''**"$*/-$*5"2)'"')"-55,*"-'5")92"

%*@)%'")2"8#''*%5"%#-5*$"-2"#"%*@)%'"@%*@#%*$":A"

'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3="-'"8#A"5'-33"-2?-'*"'0*"4*350"

Government to respond to the recommendations 

5*'"),'"-2"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"%*@)%'B"N2"'0*5*"

/-%/,85'#2/*5="#,$-')%5"9-33"-2$*@*2$*2'3A"#$?-5*"

'0*"()88-''**")2"'0*"#$*O,#/A")&"'0*"4*350"

1)?*%28*2'[5"%*5@)25*"')"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"

recommendations.

\F" I'0*%"/)88-''**5")&"'0*"d#'-)2#3"+55*8:3A"

8#A"#35)"5**V"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"#$?-/*"

)%"#55-5'#2/*")2"'0*"#$*O,#/A")&"'0*"4*350"

1)?*%28*2'[5"%*5@)25*"')"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"

or their own recommendations. Again, in providing 

such advice or assistance, auditors must ensure 

'0#'"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"-2$*@*2$*2/*"#2$"

-2'*<%-'A"9-33"2)'":*"/)8@%)8-5*$=")%":*"@*%/*-?*$"

to be compromised.

JK.-&%/%*B+/"0.-A%/)-4+,"*&(%)*/+),+

?.$/7+M%*%/(.-/

\C" W0*"4*350"Y-2-5'*%5"8#A="9-'0"'0*"/)25*2'")&"'0*"

Auditor General and after consulting the Wales 

+,$-'"I&>/*="@%)?-$*"&)%"#2A")&"'0*-%"5,@*%?-5)%A"

functions of public bodies to be exercised on their 

:*0#3&":A=")%"'%#25&*%%*$"')="'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3B"

7,@*%?-5)%A"&,2/'-)25"#%*"&,2/'-)25")&"*U#8-2-2<="

-25@*/'-2<="%*?-*9-2<")%"5',$A-2<">2#2/-#3")%")'0*%"

8#2#<*8*2'"#%%#2<*8*2'5")%"'0*"9#A5"-2"90-/0"

public bodies discharge their functions.

\H" 40*2"*U*%/-5-2<"5,/0"5,@*%?-5)%A"&,2/'-)25="

#,$-')%5"9-33"/#%%A"),'"'0*-%"9)%V"-2"#//)%$#2/*"

with the principles of being public focused, 

independent, proportionate, accountable and 

sustainable. Auditors will use the approach 

prescribed in the General Code for planning, 

/#%%A-2<"),'="%*@)%'-2<"#2$"&)33)9-2<",@")2"'0*-%"

9)%VB

H&7.3"$.+:;+<.-('%*+)(7.-+,"*&(%)*/

D]"";)%"&,%'0*%"-2&)%8#'-)2"@3*#5*"5**"'0*"Standing Orders of the National Assembly for Wales

P
age 28



Consultation document18

\Q" 7'#','*"@%)?-$*5"'0#'="-&"$-%*/'*$"')"$)"5)":A"'0*"

Welsh Ministers, the Auditor General will prepare 

#"%*@)%'")2"'0*"*U*%/-5*")&"#2A"'%#25&*%%*$"

5,@*%?-5)%A"&,2/'-)2="#2$"9-33"3#A"'0*"%*@)%'":*&)%*"

'0*"d#'-)2#3"+55*8:3AB"+<#-2"5,/0"%*@)%'-2<"9-33"

be done in accordance with the General Code.

!-)A%3%*B+'3A%&.+'*3+'//%/('*&.+()+

-.B%/(.-.3+/)&%'$+$'*3$)-3/

\\" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"8#A18="-&"0*")%"50*"'0-2V5"-'"

appropriate, provide advice or assistance to a 

registered social landlord in Wales for the purpose 

)&"'0*"*U*%/-5*":A"'0*"%*<-5'*%*$"5)/-#3"3#2$3)%$")&"

its functions.

\]" N2"/)25-$*%-2<"90*'0*%"-'"-5"#@@%)@%-#'*"')"@%)?-$*"

such advice or assistance and, if applicable, in 

providing such advice or assistance, the Auditor 

General will have particular regard for the need to 

protect audit independence. The Auditor General 

9-33"#35)"0#?*"%*<#%$"')"'0*"$*5-%#:-3-'A")&"8#V-2<"

good use of public resources, including audit 

expertise.

D%/&$)/%*B+%*,)->'(%)*+)#('%*.3+%*+

(7.+&)"-/.+),+'+/("34+%*+-./0.&(+),+'+

-.B%/(.-.3+/)&%'$+$'*3$)-3+()+(7.+?.$/7+

M%*%/(.-/

\_" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"8#A19 disclose to the Welsh 

Y-2-5'*%5"-2&)%8#'-)2"):'#-2*$":A"#,$-')%5"-2"'0*"

/),%5*")&"#"5',$A"-2"%*5@*/'")&"#"%*<-5'*%*$"5)/-#3"

landlord. In order to help the Welsh Ministers 

:*"*&>/-*2'"#2$"*&&*/'-?*"%*<,3#')%5="#,$-')%5"

must consider the relevance of information that 

'0*A"):'#-2"-2"'0*"/),%5*")&"5',$-*5"-2"%*5@*/'")&"

%*<-5'*%*$"5)/-#3"3#2$3)%$5"')"'0*"4*350"Y-2-5'*%5["

%*<,3#')%A"&,2/'-)25B"

\K" 40*%*"#,$-')%5"-$*2'-&A"%*3*?#2'"-2&)%8#'-)2="

'0*A"8,5'"50#%*"-'"9-'0"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*[5"

N2&)%8#'-)2"I&>/*%"&)%")29#%$"'%#258-55-)2"')"'0*"

%*3*?#2'"4*350"1)?*%28*2'")&>/-#35="5,:X*/'"')"

data protection and human rights considerations. 

+,$-')%5"8,5'"V**@"%*/)%$5")&"5,/0"-2&)%8#'-)2"

sharing. Except where it would be prejudicial or 

3-V*3A"')":*"@%*X,$-/-#3"')"'0*"4*350"Y-2-5'*%5["

%*<,3#')%A"&,2/'-)25="#,$-')%5"50),3$"#35)"-2&)%8"

the relevant registered social landlords of the 

-2&)%8#'-)2"')":*"50#%*$="/0*/V-2<"-'5"#//,%#/A"

9-'0"'0*8"-25)&#%"#5"-5"%*#5)2#:3A"@%#/'-/#3B

F.,.--%*B+>'((.-/+-.$'(.3+()+/)&%'$+/.&"-%(4+

()+(7.+H.&-.('-4+),+H('(.

]G" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"8#A20"%*&*%"')"'0*"7*/%*'#%A"

)&"7'#'*"#2A"8#''*%"#%-5-2<"&%)8"#"3)/#3"

<)?*%28*2'"#,$-'")%"5',$A"-&"-'"#@@*#%5"'0#'"'0*"

8#''*%"8#A":*"%*3*?#2'"&)%"'0*"@,%@)5*5")&"#2A")&"

'0*"7*/%*'#%A")&"7'#'*[5"5)/-#3"5*/,%-'A"&,2/'-)25B"

+,$-')%5",2$*%'#V-2<"3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'"9)%V"8,5'"

/)25-$*%"'0*"%*3*?#2/*")&"-2&)%8#'-)2"'0#'"'0*A"

):'#-2"-2"'0*"/),%5*")&"'0#'"9)%V"')"'0*"7*/%*'#%A"

)&"7'#'*[5"5)/-#3"5*/,%-'A"&,2/'-)25B"

]D" 40*%*"#,$-')%5"-$*2'-&A"%*3*?#2'"-2&)%8#'-)2="

'0*A"8,5'"50#%*"-'"9-'0"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*[5"

N2&)%8#'-)2"I&>/*%"&)%")29#%$"'%#258-55-)2"')"

'0*"%*3*?#2'"bg"1)?*%28*2'")&>/-#35="5,:X*/'"')"

data protection and human rights considerations. 

+,$-')%5"8,5'"V**@"%*/)%$5")&"5,/0"-2&)%8#'-)2"

sharing. Except where it would be prejudicial or 

3-V*3A"')":*"@%*X,$-/-#3"')"'0*"7*/%*'#%A")&"7'#'*[5"

functions, auditors should also inform the relevant 

local government bodies of the information to be 

50#%*$="/0*/V-2<"-'5"#//,%#/A"9-'0"'0*8"-25)&#%"#5"

-5"%*#5)2#:3A"@%#/'-/#3B

D_""b2$*%"5*/'-)2DHQe")&"'0*"1)?*%28*2'")&"4#3*5"+/'"DKK_

DK""b2$*%"5*/'-)2"DHQ(R_T")&"'0*"1)?*%28*2'")&"4#3*5"+/'"DKK_6"'0-5"@%)?-5-)2"%*S*/'5"'0*"&#/'"'0#'"'0*"4*350"Y-2-5'*%5"#%*"'0*"%*<,3#')%5")&"%*<-5'*%*$"5)/-#3"

      landlords

FG""b2$*%"5*/'-)2"QD")&"'0*".,:3-/"+,$-'"R4#3*5T"+/'"FGGH6"'0-5"@%)?-5-)2"0*3@5"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"9)%V"')":*",5*$"&)%"'0*":*2*>'")&"5)/-#3"5*/,%-'A"&,2/'-)25

P
age 29



19Consultation document

!'-(%&%0'(%*B+6%(7+N)#/.-A.-+/('("/@+)*+

.K(.-*'$+6)-C%*B+B-)"0/

]F" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"-5")&'*2"#5V*$"')"@%)?-$*"

representatives to sit on and add value to 

*U'*%2#3"9)%V-2<"<%),@5":A"@%)?-$-2<"#",2-O,*"

and impartial perspective on how well public 

5*%?-/*5"#%*":*-2<"$*3-?*%*$"#2$"0)9"'0*A"/),3$"

be improved. Auditors representing the Auditor 

1*2*%#3")2"9)%V-2<"<%),@5"9-33"#/'")23A"#5"

):5*%?*%5B"W0*A"9-33"2)'":*"#"8*8:*%")&"'0*"<%),@"

-'5*3&":,'"9-33"5**V"')"#55-5'"-2"$*3-:*%#'-)25"#5"&#%"

#5"'0*A"#%*"#:3*"')"$)"5)":A"$%#9-2<"#''*2'-)2"

')"%*3#'*$"#,$-'">2$-2<5="%*/)88*2$#'-)25"

and examples of good practice. In particular, 

'0*A"9-33"2)'":*"@#%'A"')"'0*"$*'*%8-2#'-)2")%"

-8@3*8*2'#'-)2")&"@)3-/A"#%-5-2<"&%)8"'0*"<%),@[5"

activities.

]C" +,$-')%5"8,5'"*25,%*"'0#'"'0*-%"@#%'-/-@#'-)2"#5"

):5*%?*%5")2"9)%V-2<"<%),@5"$)*5"2)'"&*''*%"'0*"

+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"-2"#2A"9#A"-2"'0*"/)2$,/'")&"'0*"

+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"?#%-),5"#,$-'"&,2/'-)25B"

D%-.&(%*B+(7.+0"#$%&'(%)*+),+$)&'$+

B)A.-*>.*(+0.-,)->'*&.+%*,)->'(%)*

]H" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"8#A"<-?*"$-%*/'-)2"')"

local government bodies to publish information 

90-/0"9-33"&#/-3-'#'*"8#V-2<"?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A"#2$"

performance comparisons.

]Q" N2"<-?-2<"5,/0"#"$-%*/'-)2="'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"9-33`

#" -$*2'-&A"'0*"'A@*R5T")&"3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'":)$A"')"

90-/0"'0*"$-%*/'-)2"#@@3-*56

:" -$*2'-&A"'0*">2#2/-#3"A*#%R5T"-2"%*3#'-)2"')"90-/0"

'0*"-2&)%8#'-)2"-5"')":*"@,:3-50*$6

/" 5@*/-&A")%"$*5/%-:*"'0*"#/'-?-'-*5"')"90-/0"'0*"

information is to relate and the form in which it 

-5"')":*"@,:3-50*$6

$" 5*2$"#"/)@A")&"'0*"$-%*/'-)2"')"*?*%A"3)/#3"

<)?*%28*2'":)$A")2"90-/0"$,'-*5"')"@,:3-50"

performance information are imposed, no later 

'0#2"CD"e*/*8:*%"-2"'0*">2#2/-#3"A*#%"90-/0"

@%*/*$*5"'0*">2#2/-#3"A*#%"-2"%*3#'-)2"')"90-/0"

'0*"-2&)%8#'-)2"-5"')":*"@,:3-50*$6"#2$

e publish the direction in a manner appropriate 

for bringing it to the attention of members of the 

public and their representatives.

]\" Z*&)%*"<-?-2<"5,/0"#"$-%*/'-)2="'0*"+,$-')%"

General will consult relevant associations of 

3)/#3"<)?*%28*2'":)$-*5"#2$"#2A")'0*%"@*%5)25"

0*")%"50*"5**5">'B"W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"9-33"#35)"

0#?*"%*<#%$"')"'0*"2**$"')"8#V*"<))$",5*")&"

public resources, including audit expertise, and 

'0*"-8@)%'#2/*")&"@,:3-/"&)/,5="@#%'-/,3#%3A"9-'0"

a view to the engagement of the public in the 

management of public resources.

D'('+>'(&7%*B

]]" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"8#A"/)2$,/'"$#'#"8#'/0-2<"

exercises for the purposes of preventing and 

detecting fraud.

]_" N2")%$*%"')"5,@@)%'"4*350"@,:3-/":)$-*5"-2"'0*-%"

><0'"#<#-25'"&%#,$="'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"%,25"

'0*"d#'-)2#3";%#,$"N2-'-#'-?*"Rd;NT"-2"4#3*5")2"

a biennial basis. The NFI matches data across 

)%<#2-5#'-)25"#2$"5A5'*85"')"0*3@"@,:3-/":)$-*5"

-$*2'-&A"@)'*2'-#33A"&%#,$,3*2'")%"*%%)2*),5"/3#-85"

and transactions.

P
age 30



Consultation document20

]K" W0*"d;N"-2"4#3*5"-5"%,2"-2"/)33#:)%#'-)2"9-'0"d;N"

exercises in England, Scotland and Northern 

Ireland to enable data to be matched across 

2#'-)2#3":),2$#%-*5B"W)"*25,%*"/)25-5'*2/A")&"

approach and to minimise duplication of effort, 

'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"9-33"/)2'-2,*"')"/)M)@*%#'*"

with other national audit agencies, including on 

joint development of new data matching modules, 

sharing data processing arrangements and 

sharing resources such as staff and technical 

guidance.

80 All participants in data matching exercises such as 

'0*"d;N="/#%%-*$"),'":A=")%")2":*0#3&")&"'0*"+,$-')%"

1*2*%#3="9-33",2$*%'#V*"'0*-%"9)%V"-2"#//)%$#2/*"

with The Code of Data Matching Practice of the 

Auditor General for Wales.

Question 4

D)+4)"+'B-..+6%(7+(7.+0-)0)/.3+&)*(.*(+

),+H&7.3"$.+:+),+(7%/+<)3.G+67%&7+

0-./&-%#./+(7.+6'4+%*+67%&7+&.-('%*+)(7.-+

,"*&(%)*/+>"/(+#.+&'--%.3+)"(E

P
age 31



21Consultation document

81 Auditors of small bodies21"9-33",2$*%'#V*"#2"

examination of the annual accounts and additional 

-2&)%8#'-)2"#2$"*U@3#2#'-)2"@%)?-$*$":A"'0*"

:)$A"-2")%$*%"')"*2#:3*"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"')":*"

5#'-5>*$"'0#'`

a the accounts are prepared in accordance with 

3*<-53#'-?*"%*O,-%*8*2'56

b proper practices have been observed in the 

/)8@-3#'-)2")&"'0*"#//),2'56"#2$

/" '0*":)$A"0#5"8#$*"@%)@*%"#%%#2<*8*2'5"&)%"

5*/,%-2<"*/)2)8A="*&>/-*2/A"#2$"*&&*/'-?*2*55"

in its use of resources.

82 Auditors will meet their responsibilities, in 

#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"<,-$#2/*"-55,*$":A"'0*"+,$-')%"

1*2*%#3=":A`

a reviewing compliance with the legislative 

%*O,-%*8*2'5"&)%"'0*"@%*@#%#'-)2")&"'0*"#22,#3"

#//),2'56

:" /#%%A-2<"),'"#"0-<0M3*?*3"#2#3A'-/#3"%*?-*9")&"

>2#2/-#3"#2$")'0*%"-2&)%8#'-)2"@%)?-$*$"')"'0*"

#,$-')%6"#2$

c reviewing such additional information and 

*U@3#2#'-)2"#5"-5"2*/*55#%A"')"@%)?-$*"

5,&>/-*2'"*?-$*2/*"'0#'"'0*":)$A"0#5"

maintained effective governance arrangements

#2$"#2"#$*O,#'*"5A5'*8")&"-2'*%2#3"/)2'%)3"#2$"

-2'*%2#3"#,$-'"'0%),<0),'"'0*">2#2/-#3"A*#%B

_C" 40*%*=")2"'0*":#5-5")&"'0*"#,$-')%[5"%*?-*9="'0*"

#,$-')%"%*O,-%*5"&,%'0*%"*?-$*2/*"-2"%*3#'-)2"')"

#2A"%*3*?#2'"8#''*%="#$$-'-)2#3"'*5'-2<"8,5'":*"

,2$*%'#V*2"')"#$$%*55"'0*"#,$-')%[5"/)2/*%25B

_H" 40*2"'0*"#,$-')%"0#5"/)8@3*'*$"#2"*U#8-2#'-)2"

of the annual accounts and additional information 

and explanation provided, the auditor gives 

#2")@-2-)2")2"'0*"#//),2'5"#2$"/*%'->*5"'0*"

completion of the audit. On the basis of their 

review, auditors provide assurance that no matters 

have come to their attention giving cause for 

concern that: 

a the accounts and other information provided 

$)"2)'"@%)@*%3A"@%*5*2'")%"@%*5*2'"&#-%3A"'0*"

>2#2/-#3"#&&#-%5")&"'0*":)$A6

b the accounts and other information provided 

#%*"2)'"-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"'0*"5@*/->*$"

%*O,-%*8*2'56"#2$""

/" %*3*?#2'"3*<-53#'-?*"#2$"%*<,3#')%A"%*O,-%*8*2'5"

have not been met.

H&7.3"$.+O;+=7.+'"3%(+),+/>'$$+#)3%./

FD""Z)$-*5"9-'0"*-'0*%"#22,#3"-2/)8*")%"#22,#3"*U@*2$-',%*":*3)9"#">2#2/-#3"3-8-'"$*'*%8-2*$":A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3

Question 5

D)+4)"+'B-..+6%(7+(7.+0-)0)/.3+'00-)'&7+

()+(7.+'"3%(+),+/>'$$+#)3%./+0-./&-%#.3+%*+

H&7.3"$.+OE

P
age 32



Consultation document22

_Q" W0*"&)33)9-2<"S)9/0#%'"5,88#%-5*5"0)9"'0-5"

Code must be applied to audit and certain other 

functions of the Auditor General.

8**.K;+=7.+'00$%&'(%)*+),+(7%/+<)3.+'*3+%(/+/&)0.+%*+(.->/+),+,"*&(%)*/

Audit functions

Principles of audit

Certain other functions

Schedule 1

General Code

Specific Code

Schedule 2

(if applicable)

P
age 33



23Consultation document

_\" W0*"@%)?-5-)25")&"'0-5"()$*"#@@3A"')"'0*"&)33)9-2<"

&,2/'-)25")2"#"5'#',')%A":#5-5`

#" cU#8-2-2<"#2A"#//),2'5")%"5'#'*8*2'5")&"

#//),2'5"'0#'"&#33"')":*"*U#8-2*$":A"'0*"+,$-')%"

1*2*%#3"-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"@%)?-5-)2"8#$*":A="

)%":A"?-%',*")&="#2"*2#/'8*2'B

:" (#%%A-2<"),'=",2$*%'#V-2<")%"@%)8)'-2<"

?#3,*"&)%"8)2*A"5',$-*5")%"*U#8-2#'-)25"-2"

#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"@%)?-5-)2"8#$*":A")%":A"?-%',*"

of an enactment.

c Those functions contained in, or transferred 

to the Auditor General under, the following 

provisions of the Government of Wales Act 

1998:

-" 7*/'-)2"DHQ+RFT"R,2$*%'#V-2<")%"@%)8)'-2<"

other studies relating to the provision of 

5*%?-/*5":A"/*%'#-2":)$-*5T6

--" 7*/'-)2"DHQ(R_T"R$-5/3)5-2<"-2&)%8#'-)2"

):'#-2*$"-2"'0*"/),%5*")&"#"5',$A"-2"%*5@*/'"

of a registered social landlord to the Welsh 

Y-2-5'*%5T6

---" 7*/'-)2"DHQe"R@%)?-$-2<"#$?-/*"#2$"

#55-5'#2/*"')"#"%*<-5'*%*$"5)/-#3"3#2$3)%$T6

-?" 7*/'-)2"DH\"R'%#25&*%")&"&,2/'-)25")&"'0*"

Comptroller and Auditor General in respect 

)&"/*%'#-2":)$-*5"')"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3T6"

and

?" 7*/'-)2"DH\+"R'%#25&*%"*'/B"')"'0*"+,$-')%"

1*2*%#3")&"5,@*%?-5)%A"&,2/'-)25")&"4*350"

Y-2-5'*%5"-2"%*5@*/'")&"/*%'#-2":)$-*5TB

d Those functions contained in the following 

@%)?-5-)25")&"'0*".,:3-/"+,$-'"R4#3*5T"+/'"FGGH`

i Part 2 (audit of local government bodies in 

4#3*5T6

--" 7*/'-)2"HQ"R/)2$,/'-2<=")%"#55-5'-2<"'0*"

7*/%*'#%A")&"7'#'*"-2"/)2$,/'-2<=":*2*>'"

#$8-2-5'%#'-)2"5',$-*5T6"#2$

---" 7*/'-)2"QD"R%*&*%%-2<"8#''*%5"%*3#'*$"')"

5)/-#3"5*/,%-'A"')"'0*"7*/%*'#%A")&"7'#'*TB

e Those functions contained in the following 

povisions of Schedule 8 to the Government of 

4#3*5"+/'"FGG\`

-" .#%#<%#@0"D]"R#//*55"')"$)/,8*2'5T6"#2$

--" .#%#<%#@0"FG"R/*%'->/#'-)2")&"/3#-85="%*',%25"

*'/B"#'"'0*"%*O,*5'")&"#":)$ATB

P
age 34



Consultation documentFH

Part 2: Statement of Practice

P
age 35



FQConsultation document

_]" b2$*%"'0*"L)/#3"1)?*%28*2'"R4#3*5T"Y*#5,%*"

FGGK"R'0*"Y*#5,%*T="'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"&)%"

Wales must prepare a statement of practice that 

$*5/%-:*5"'0*"9#A"-2"90-/0"0*")%"50*"-2'*2$5"

to exercise improvement audit and assessment 

functions. Those functions are:

#" ,2$*%'#V-2<"-8@%)?*8*2'"-2&)%8#'-)2"

and planning audits, to review whether 

improvement authorities22 have discharged 

their duties for publishing improvement 

@3#22-2<"#2$"@*%&)%8#2/*"-2&)%8#'-)26

:" /#%%A-2<"),'"-8@%)?*8*2'"#55*558*2'5="')"

determine whether improvement authorities 

#%*"3-V*3A"')"/)8@3A"9-'0"3*<#3"%*O,-%*8*2'5"

')"8#V*"#%%#2<*8*2'5"')"5*/,%*"/)2'-2,),5"

-8@%)?*8*2'"-2"'0*"*U*%/-5*")&"'0*-%"&,2/'-)256"

and

/" /)M)%$-2#'-2<"#2$"%*@)%'-2<")2"-8@%)?*8*2'"

#,$-'"#2$"#55*558*2'"9)%VB

__" W0-5"7'#'*8*2'")&".%#/'-/*"R'0-5"7'#'*8*2'T"&,3>35"

'0#'"@,%@)5*"#2$"0#5":**2"@%*@#%*$"-2"#"9#A"'0#'"

accords with the principles set out in the Measure 

M"2#8*3A"'0#'"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"9-33"*U*%/-5*"

'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"-8@%)?*8*2'"#,$-'"#2$"

assessment functions:

#" /)25-5'*2'3A":*'9**2"$-&&*%*2'"-8@%)?*8*2'"

#,'0)%-'-*56

:" @%)@)%'-)2#'*3A"5)"#5"2)'"')"-8@)5*"#2"

unreasonable burden on improvement 

#,'0)%-'-*56"#2$

c with a view to assisting improvement 

#,'0)%-'-*5"')"/)8@3A"9-'0"'0*-%"$,'-*5"-2"%*3#'-)2"

to securing continuous improvement.

89 In certain circumstances, the Auditor General 

8#A"$*/-$*=")%":*"%*O,*5'*$":A"4*350"Y-2-5'*%5="

')"/#%%A"),'"5@*/-#3"-25@*/'-)25")&"-8@%)?*8*2'"

#,'0)%-'-*5["/)8@3-#2/*"9-'0"'0*-%"$,'-*5"-2"%*3#'-)2"

to securing continuous improvement. The Auditor 

1*2*%#3"0#5"?)3,2'#%-3A"*U@#2$*$"'0-5"7'#'*8*2'"

5)"'0#'"-'"#35)"#@@3-*5"')"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"

5@*/-#3"-25@*/'-)2"9)%VB

90 The functions to which this Statement relates 

8#A":*"/#%%-*$"),'":A"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3")%"8#A"

be delegated to others23B"()25*O,*2'3A="-2"'0-5"

7'#'*8*2'"'0*"'*%85"a#,$-')%["#2$"a#,$-')%5["#@@3A"

/)33*/'-?*3A"')`

#" '0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#36

:" *8@3)A**5")&"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*6"#2$

/" #2A"@*%5)2"90)"@%)?-$*5"5*%?-/*5"')"'0*"4#3*5"

+,$-'"I&>/*B

KD" W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"9-33"-55,*"5,@@3*8*2'#%A"

guidance on the application of this Statement, 

including arrangements for how compliance with 

this Statement will be assessed.

=7%/+H('(.>.*(+3./&-%#./+7)6+'"3%()-/+>"/(+.K.-&%/.+(7.+8"3%()-+9.*.-'$+

,)-+?'$./@+$)&'$+B)A.-*>.*(+%>0-)A.>.*(+'"3%(G+'//.//>.*(+'*3+/0.&%'$+

inspection functions

FF""(),2'A"#2$"/),2'A":)%),<0"/),2/-35="d#'-)2#3".#%V"#,'0)%-'-*5"#2$">%*"#2$"%*5/,*"#,'0)%-'-*5"-2"4#3*5"#%*"/)33*/'-?*3A"$*>2*$"#5"a-8@%)?*8*2'"#,'0)%-'-*5["-2"'0*"

      Measure

FC""W0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"8,5'"@%*@#%*"#"5/0*8*"')"90)33A")%"@#%'3A"$*3*<#'*"#2A")&"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"&,2/'-)25"')"#2"*8@3)A**")&"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*")%"#"

""""""@*%5)2"90)"@%)?-$*5"5*%?-/*5"')"'0*"4#3*5"+,$-'"I&>/*

P
age 36



Consultation documentF\

KF" +5"@#%'")&"#"/)M)%$-2#'*$"#@@%)#/0"')"#,$-'"9)%V"

and to accord with the principles set out in the 

Measure, when exercising local government 

improvement audit, assessment and special 

inspection functions, auditors must: 

#" /#%%A"),'"'0*-%"9)%V"-2"#//)%$#2/*"9-'0"'0*"

principles of being public focused, independent, 

proportionate, accountable and sustainable, as 

3#-$"),'"-2"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3[5"()$*")&"+,$-'"

.%#/'-/*6"#2$

b use the approach prescribed in the General 

Code section of the Code of Audit Practice for 

@3#22-2<="/#%%A-2<"),'="%*@)%'-2<"#2$"&)33)9-2<"

,@")2"'0*-%"9)%VB

KC" ;)%"*#/0">2#2/-#3"A*#%="'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"

-5"%*O,-%*$"')"@%)$,/*"#"'-8*'#:3*"&)%"*#/0"

-8@%)?*8*2'"#,'0)%-'A"5*''-2<"),'"'0*"$#'*5"

and times during which, in his or her opinion, 

the Auditor General and other relevant external 

%*?-*9":)$-*5"50),3$",2$*%'#V*"'0*-%"&,2/'-)25"R-2"

%*3#'-)2"')"'0*"#,'0)%-'ATB"Z*&)%*"@%)$,/-2<"5,/0"

timetables, auditors will consult with the relevant 

external review bodies. When producing such 

'-8*'#:3*5="#,$-')%5"9-33"5**V"')"*25,%*"'0#'"'0*"

needs of the relevant external review bodies in 

terms of the proper exercise of their functions are 

accommodated, and that unreasonable burden is 

not placed on improvement authorities. Auditors 

8,5'"5,:5*O,*2'3A"'#V*"#33"%*#5)2#:3*"5'*@5"')"

adhere to such timetables. This timetabling will 

2)'="-2"#2A"9#A="/)25'%#-2")%"&*''*%"'0*"+,$-')%"

General or other external review bodies in 

reaching their conclusions and reporting on their 

>2$-2<5B

KH" c#/0"A*#%"90*2"/#%%A-2<"),'"-8@%)?*8*2'"

assessments, auditors will assess whether 

improvement authorities have given due regard to 

sustainable development as a central organising 

@%-2/-@3*"&)%"5'%#'*<-/"$*/-5-)25="#2$"0#?*"'#V*2"

'0*"1*2*%#3"cO,#3-'A"e,'A"-2')"#//),2'="-2"'0*-%"

arrangements to secure continuous improvement.

KQ" N&"'0*"+,$-')%"1*2*%#3"'0-2V5"-'"#@@%)@%-#'*"-2"

the light of an improvement audit, assessment 

)%"5@*/-#3"-25@*/'-)2="0*")%"50*"8#A"8#V*"

recommendations to the Welsh Ministers to 

@%)?-$*"#55-5'#2/*"')"#2"-8@%)?*8*2'"#,'0)%-'A"

)%"')"<-?*"-'"#"$-%*/'-)2B"+,$-')%5"9-33"/3*#%3A"),'3-2*"

'0*"%#'-)2#3*"&)%"8#V-2<"5,/0"%*/)88*2$#'-)25="

based on improvement audit, assessment or 

-25@*/'-)2">2$-2<5B

8"3%()-/+>"/(+&'--4+)"(+$)&'$+B)A.-*>.*(+%>0-)A.>.*(+'"3%(G+'//.//>.*(+

'*3+/0.&%'$+%*/0.&(%)*+6)-C+%*+'&&)-3'*&.+6%(7+(7.+0-%*&%0$./+'*3+B.*.-'$+

'00-)'&7+0-./&-%#.3+%*+(7.+8"3%()-+9.*.-'$@/+<)3.+),+8"3%(+!-'&(%&.

Question 6

D)+4)"+'B-..+6%(7+(7.+0-)0)/.3+

'00-)'&7+()+.K.-&%/%*B+$)&'$+B)A.-*>.*(+

improvement audit, assessment and 

special inspection functions described in 

(7.+3-',(+H('(.>.*(+),+!-'&(%&.E

P
age 37


	Agenda
	2 Hospital Catering and Patient Nutrition: Evidence from the Welsh Government
	3 Caldicot and Wentlooge Levels Internal Drainage Board: Wales Audit Office response to report recommendations
	4 Papers to note
	4a Health Finances 2012-13 and Beyond: Letter from the Auditor General for Wales (27 January 2014)
	8 Consultation on a new code of audit practice and statement of practice

